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°HCV can be cleared either through treatment or (very rarely in the 
chronic stage) naturally, with a success rate of treatment, for those not 
co-infected with HIV, in the range of 40% to 80% (depending on 
genotype); it is probable that many of those who have cleared the virus 
will not have needs that are suitable for charitable relief." 
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The following transcript is taken from the recording of the Caxton Foundation 
Partnership Group meeting and has been approved by the campaign group 

members that attended. It is a genuine attempt to reflect accurately the 
discussions which took place at that meeting. 

Caxton Foundation Partnership Group Meeting 281h November 2013 

In attendance:-

Jan Barlow CEO Caxton (JB) 
Ann Lloyd Chair Caxton (AL) 
Charles Lister Vice Chair Caxton & Chair of Welfare Committee (CL) 
David Atterbury Thomas New Trustee of Caxton 
June Amadoyc Office Manager 

GRO-A J Contaminated Blood Campaign (JS) 
Glenn_ _Wilkinson Contaminated Blood Campaign (GW) 
L..!9&..J Chair Manor House Group/Vice Chair Taintedblood (DT) 

GRO-A i Manor House Group (DF) 
GRO-A Manor House Group (EB) 

GRO-Aj Taintedblood (JP) 
Rachel Youngman Haemophilia Society Interim CEO (RY) 

Apologies: Charles Gore Hepatitis C Trust 
GRO-A 'representative of the bereaved community 

The original location of the meeting was arranged by the Caxton Foundation to take 
place at the Rochester Hotel, Vane Street, London however this location was not 
suitable as it did not have wheelchair access, so the location of the meeting had to be 
rearranged at short notice and the meeting actually took place at Westminster 
Kingsway College, Vincent Square, London 

Ann Lloyd(AL) thanked everyone for attending and apologised for the inconvenience 
caused toioRo.j and asked everyone to introduce themselves. 

AL asked if the minutes of the last meeting were a correct record (in terms of 
materiality) and L. . : . .J replied no. Ea  ±I raised the point that 213rds of 
what was said at the meeting wasn't included, including what was asked for carers;.
carers virtually don't get a mention. AL said that carer's do get a mention, but110! 
responded with "only just, one word I think". AL disagreed and said that minutes are 
not of a verbatim record; she understood that the last meeting was being recorded and 
asked if this meeting was being recorded, if so, was everyone happy with that as it's 
unusual. Glenn Wilkinson (GW) said it needed recording as we have severe memory 
problems and can't be expected to remember every last thing. AL said it was fine and 
asked if everyone was happy with it being recorded. No-one objected. AL asked if 
everyone would have access to it at_ the same time; GW agreed. GW confirmed that 
he was recording.    GRO _A   asked AL if she was happy about the meeting 
being recorded; AL said she was used to every word she say's being recorded, and if 
it was for memory problems that was a reason, it's not usual practice but it is a reason 
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and as far as they were concerned, they want a Partnership Group meeting that 
worked for everybody so that they don't exclude. AL said that minutes on the other 
hand are a material record of the decisions or the main issues that were raised at the 
meeting. AL then went on to say if4 ;had real problems with these it would have 
been helpful fo ' to have had a look at them when they were first published some 3 
weeks after the initial meeting. [GR+ explained that with various personal issues, she 
didn't have the time. AL asked "to what extent is the materiality affected?" i0Ro.Ai 

explained that all it said on carer's was that "AL advised that Caxton wishes the 
Partnership Group to help make the organisation more effective in supporting its 
clients L - said "we're not clients, we're beneficiaries" and AL said "yes I know 
that") and develop its services. There was some discussion regarding the composition 
of the group, it was agreed that the main group should be more inclusive and include 
people who have haemophilia as well as those who did not and also includes primary 
beneficiaries, widows and carers." said that was the only mention of carer's in 
the minutes. 

1!± explained that she originally applied to be a beneficiary of Caxton, and after the 
first letter she withdrew but after speaking with Charles Lister (CL) after the last 
meeting, thought it had changed so would reapply. o received both forms together 
and returned them and applied for a carer's break (it was sent recorded delivery and 
before 24 h̀ June 2013) and finally got a cheque for that break on the 7th September. 

explained there were two breaks available on 2e July or 8/9 h̀ September and 
having telephoned the week before the holiday she was due to go on in July, she was 
told that she hadn't sent it in in-time to get to the committee. !GRo-Ajthen spoke to Roz 
Riley a week later who toldLoRo.Athat the lady who was dealing with it had gone on 
holiday and hadn't left it out, so!oj had to wait until the meeting in August. 
Meanwhile two holidays had gone and hado ;put a deposit down on those holidays 
she would have lost her deposit, not only that she was unable to have a break that 
year. AL said that all she could do was apologise for that and that they have made 
radical changes to the staffing bearing in mind they have 3, because they were so 
dissatisfied with the speed at which the applications were processed.ioR•o* also applied 
for a funeral Ian and was turned down and explained that at the last Partnership 
Group meetin 

o 

R l specifically asked if carer's could apply  and was told there was no 
reason why not.lGRo n; was resubmitting her funeral plan. o.Aj then read out what she 
got back in the letter. "I understand that Mrs LQR9.J had a discussion with Charles 
Lister, Chair of the NWC at the Partnership Group meeting back in June, Charles has 
asked me to stress that the Caxton is able to provide support for carer's, particularly 
in relation to respite breaks and your application for this purpose will be considered 
at the next NWC meeting to be held on the 15' August.  Once we have made a 
decision you will be notified in writing of that outcome". -*,!L Jexplained that it said at 
the beginning "although we have provided financial assistance for this purpose in the 
past, this has only been agreed for primary beneficiaries in receipt of Skipton Fund 
stage 2 payments". G + asked why+-Stage 1 and Stage 2 are being discriminated 
against, widows and carer's as well. a. ;^ said that was contrary to what the Secretary 

r-  - - •-1 

of State said in January 2011. ' R-o!said the letter was sent by Roz Riley and that she 
had spoken to Roz and specifically told her what CL had said and she said that CL 
was due into the office on the Thursday and said she would have a word with him and 
would hon [ cno Jback; she didn't so rlhad to phone Roz back. AL said she thought p et ._._._ g 
CL would be happy to reconsider any respite.!GRO-A said that as Chair of the Welfare 
committee, Charles should know what grounds we are entitled to apply for and if 
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somebody asked him if they were able to apply for that, CL should either be able to 
say yes, or no. l6R took it from what CL said that she should have no problem in 
applying for a funeral plan and getting it. GW said that CBC did minute it in detail 
and quoted from the transcript of the 11" June 2013 PG meeting, "AL replied "yes 
we've already granted those ± ]asked for clarification if this was for the carers as 
well as for the husbands. AL and CL both said "I don't see why not. " L E said that 
she took that to mean that she could apply and will get it. 

G ►j said that these are the great differences we face between Caxton and MFI' 
whereas there are huge differences in relation to ongoing payments for a widow when 
their husband or partner passes on, whereas someone in Caxton doesn't have that right 
to apply at the present time, gets no extra monies for a certain amount of time after 
and therefore you can see there are huge differences which needs sorting out because 
they are most unfair. GRO-A !said the other thing Caxton needed to take 
into consideration is that it's very hard to get insurance. 6R"Imade the point that her 
life as a carer is badly affected and it's difficult for her and her husband to make plans 
as they can be cancelled at short notice. AL said that she appreciated all that and she 
would like to ask the NWC to consider the general principal of carers and the best 

'sways in which to continue to deliver a good service to them.;oRa~.aid that the best
way to do it would be at the beginning of the year to say to carer's, "if they wish to 
apply, apply for a 'one off' grant for the year, spend it on your breaks when you can, 
and obviousl • send the receipts in whenyou can."'lit"; said it would be no good her Y p  ~._._._.= 
saying, "I've got a free day tomorrow, could you send me some money and I'll have a 
'pamper day', it won't work like that." AL agreed that it wouldn't. GW made the 
point that we seem to be going round in circles on these two aspects so there was no 
reason for AL to raise it with the NWC as we thought this was already done and 
finished after the last PG meeting as far as we were concerned. GW said CL had said 
to[o Jlast time that once the grant had been issued, it was not time limited, but are 
finding now that when letters are coming through that grants are now limited to 12 
months. AL said it might be 12 months as Caxton only have an annual allocation, 
they can't promise anything else outside of their statutory annual allocation. GW 
made the point if that's the case, 'then tell people, don't let people find out by 
accident.' GW also said that they understood from the conversation AL/CL had with 

[ ±i that these grants were not time limited, but now we are seeing on the bottom of 
the letters, 12 months. AL asked Charles to "take it up and discuss this and then write 
to the PG group to tell them".[off] said "oohh some communication, that would be 
lovely." [off] asked if the funeral situation regarding the partners could also be 
discussed. 1 RO-A _ asked if this could be extended; "you will be pleased to hear 
there are people reporting some good experiences initially but they are being 
undermined too by not seeing things through in a timely manner, for example, people 
who are moving home for instance get help with setting up home costs and so on, but 
then they get let down with removal costs, and they've got a date when they are 
supposed to be moving but they don't get the feedback or response in a timely way." 
GW said that the letteroI received highlighted stage 2's,-and he asked if AL and CL 
could confirm this was also for stage 1 beneficiaries. [ J stated that when the 
Secretary of State announced the set up of Caxton in 2011 it was for everybody, no 
discrimination, but Caxton are discriminating, which goes against what was said in 
Parliament. 

WITN2050101_0027 



AL asked if anyone was materially dissatisfied with the minutes, could she have the 
amendments in writing and she would consider them whether or not they affect their 
materiality. 

Agenda: 

Recruitment of board member with experience of living with Hepatitis C 

AL said they hope the appointment will take place on the 4 h̀ December 2013 and that 
they've had a good response with individuals who are interested in this position 
having written compelling descriptions of how they can and cannot help in ensuring 
that a board member would be effective in bringing a different dimension to the 
board. AL said that would go on and they would circulate the name of the individual. 

ioasked if it was a member affected by NHS contaminated treatment who is 
applying. AL responded that there were a number of people applying. [a + asked if it 
was someone with haemophilia who knows the problems. AL explained that she has 
had long and serious conversations with a number of the individuals who would wish 
to put themselves forward; the thing that they all emphasised without exception was 
their absolute need for confidentiality so AL couldn't divulge any of this, but she 
could assure us that within those applicants there are people who would fulfil the 
criteria that the community would anticipate; she couldn't say any more without 
breaching it. °RO_AJ said that there was a concern that people do not want to be 
represented by someone who is going to speak for them who has a background of 
infection which is not relevant to this community. AL said that she understood that, 
it's a 'no fault approach' but couldn't say anymore. CL said that as a result of a 
discussion they had back in June they did advertise the role through the Haemophilia 
Society and the Hepatitis C Trust. ;cRoa] said that there is a distinction that there is a 
massive gap between somebody who is infected through whole blood and somebody 
infected through their Haemophilia and how they have lived with Hep C and their 
differences and how it affects them. AL said that they understand that. She also said 
that this person was not their sole source of advice and guidance. 

Grant Application Process 

CL said he fully understood that things were far from perfect at the moment as there 
were still people who are clearly reporting experiences they feel they aren't happy 
with and CL hasn't had a chance to look at them. CL said that what they want to do is 
to have a good experience for people and want to deal with them promptly. CL said 
they are seeing applications coming through the Welfare Committee that they are no 
longer getting the kind of delays in some applications they used to have, it was fairly 
common, if they saw applications that had come into the office a while back they used 
to comment on that and ask searching questions about why that was the case. That 
hadn't been the case for two or three months although CL can't demonstrate what the 
timing is of the average application coming through, but his impression from what 
they see is improving although they may have a little way to go yet. CL said that they 
are also making sure that the office are aware if something comes through urgently 
that can't wait for the next meeting of the Welfare Committee (which we are still 
every 6 weeks) that can come to them via email for a decision and certainly between 
meetings they get a fairly regular stream of urgent requests that come to them and 
where they can, they deal with them within 24 hours within their powers depending 

4 
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on the level of urgency. CL said that there was a big push to make sure that people 
are not kept waiting, particularly them that need decisions urgently because there is a 
time factor for example. CL said it does tie in with the staffing issues as well and the 
support behind this. 

Staffing 

Jan Barlow (JB) said that during the summer, one of the things she was aware of was 
the things CL was highlighting when she first came in; that they were seeing 
application with the NWC that had got lost in the system; things weren't being 
followed up particularly promptly; there were delays in getting responses to people 
after the meetings; a lot of that was just down to the skills of some of the people 
involved in the team; they did a restructuring exercise over the summer which 
resulted in the redundancy of Roz Riley with the replacement of her role with a more 
Senior role, the recruitment of that was just about to start but they have had an interim 
person in place for a couple of months covering some of that, so thought it fair to say 
that the low level of complaints they used to have about delays and everything else 
are not happening, they are not seeing applications going to the NWC that should 
have gone some 3/4/5/6 months previously, that kind of thing is not happening. JB 
said if people apply a couple of days after an NWC meeting, if it's a routine request, 
there will be some delay before it goes to the next meeting because the meetings are 
every 6 weeks, but Caxton do now publish all the dates for those meetings on the 
website so people are aware when the next meeting is coming up. AL asked how long 
in terms of the capability of the staff before a meeting would it be sensible to get an 
application in. JB said it says on the website 10 days (but she would need to check); 
the papers have to go out, there are lots of cases every time and they need all the 
information in good time so that they can prepare everything and get that out for the 
committee to consider adequately. JB said "CL was right and that they are dealing 
with a number urgent emergency requests throughout the period between those 
applications, sometimes things are delayed because they need more information; 
unfortunately that is how it is, sometimes things take a while because people actually 
don't get back to us for whatever reason, but we are now chasing those more actively 
so I am sure there are some people who were still not quite getting what they want but 
my experience is that those things are happening, all the letters go out within the week 
of the meeting, so given the bits of process that have to be gone through, its not 'you 
apply, the next day you get a decision, the next day you get a cheque' there are stages 
that have to be gone through." JB said that they are in the process of upgrading their 
database so that they will be able in future to monitor when it comes in, when it goes 
to the committee, whether there is a delay before they get more information, so every 
stage can be monitored so that in the future, they will be able to build up some 
performance indicators for how long things are taking. JB said that they cannot do 
that at the moment unfortunately. 

;off; said that the dates of the committee meetings are published on the website, but 
what if people are not on the internet? There will be some Caxton members who are 
not on the internet so they don't know. JB agreed. G- said that for those who are on 
the internet Caxton will have email addresses, but for those other members who 
Caxton haven't got email addresses for,  ! asked if they were going to send the dates 
out via letter. JB said that they could do that, "the only trouble is that sometimes 
dates shift a bit, whether every time we move the meeting..."[ o] asked "so they are 
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not set in stone?" JB said that things happen as they get called to a meeting with a 
Minister or whatever it is, and they have to rearrange. JB said that they have also put 
more information on the website (which was originally suggested by GW) about the 
kind of support so that people have gpt an indication; the forms are up there as well so 
that people can download those. Ro-Aisaid that they also say about more information, 
but when she applied for the holiday, it was a coach holiday, it was the cheapest 
holiday she could find, it was the only comnpan that did that holiday, but Caxton still 
wrote to[! and asked for a second quote. [ !± asked why you need to give 2 quotes 
for a holiday. JB said that is what they have been doing unless it's an exception 
where you can only possibly have sourced something from one place. [!5#; said that 
she applied for that one because it was the only one that went to where she wanted to 
go.io.Ai.said people are being asked for accurate figures as well, whereas other people 
were being asked for estimates. AL said that they have to be consistent. JB said if 
people are hoping to get a particular work on their homes done, say a new boiler, they 
normally ask for 2 quotes so that they can get value for money and then usually those 
things are approved on the basis of those quotes, otherwise if you're paying people on 
the back of the work done, that would be retrospective as things have moved they are 
only those kind of things in exceptional circumstances; if you get quotations as 
apposed to an estimate and go with that quotation, then you will get the work done 
unless they put a 3 month time limit on something that goes over that, but that is to 
JB's knowledge. JB said if there is an example of where Caxton are doing it on 'a 
finger in the air basis' they would be very interested to know who that was. 

I i asked how many categories Caxton had between the application status, those who 
are the infected making an application and the carers and dependents. ;Masked if 
they have two categories. JB said they treat everyone equally (AL agreed).00.Aj said 
they don't treat everybody equally. GW said he thought the problem is; the carer's 
and the wife's are all mixed in with the primary beneficiary and it's just fudged. 
"They don't know really what they can apply for and this is one of the problems." [ 
said that this is why they are trying to sort out with the deeds of Caxton where the 
carer's and the wife's have been written into it specifically, then they can apply in 
their own right and is not affected or connected to the husband's status, stage 1, stage 
2, on benefits and that's the way it should be. oRo-Aalso made the point that there are 
differences of how the two trusts operate but that there should be a level playing field. 
JB said that we need to bear in mind that they are two completely separate 
organisations.oRo.Asaid that he appreciated that. JB said that the Macfarlane Trust's 
funding basis has been established over 25 years, the government has not created 
Caxton to put alongside the Macfarlane Trust and said 'we want you both do 
everything and here's the funding to be able to do that.' "We are still having to apply 
very separately for additional funding for each organisation and so from the outside, 
this is slightly crazy, but that's how it is and that's how to deal with it, so we cannot 
automatically just have discussions about parity and we've got the Secretary of State 
saying there are some of those difficulties." AL made the point (unless she's 
misunderstood it)L ?±J was asking_ for clarification of the applicability for carer's, 
dependents, widows, widowers.LGRo-A said that JB had said everybody is the same, "but 
Caxton do not treat everybody the same, that is a case in point. Stage 1; stage 2; stage 
2 can pay for a funeral plan; stage 1 can't; carer's can't; widows probably can't. So 
not everybody is treated the same." JP asked if regular payments are taken into 
account when it comes to people being told that you can afford to pay for say a fridge, 
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out of your regular payment whereas someone in the stage I situation might be given 
more substantial monies towards it. 

1--  brought up the issue of retrospective grants in an emergency basis and said a few 
month's ago they had to buy two electric recliner chairs, because the 2 they had prior 
to that failed, so they had to get two new ones, her husband cannot have a manual 
chair because he hasn't got the power in his legs and hasn't got the power in his arms. 
He sometimes has to sleep in the chair if he has a bleed in his arm, or he's got a bad 
leg whatever, so when he is downstairs I'm downstairs so I've got one. We didn't 
know whether or not we could apply to Caxton for them so didn't, butIoRo is 
retrospectively now going to send the receipt off for those. AL said that she is sure 
that would be considered. o. i made the point that if you're ill, you haven't got the 
time to phone up and wait for months for Caxton Foundation to say 'yes or no' 'you 
need it now, not in twelve month's time, which is the experience a lot of people from 
Caxton are having, we have to wait for month's." OW said this had only been 
changed recently regarding retrospective grants, people are being told that they are 
only going to be paid in the most extreme cases. GW made the point that everybody's 
idea of an extreme case is different. GW said that the notes from the meeting said 
"AL advised she wanted the Partnership Group to help Caxton develop policy and 
strategies for the future". GW made the point that it was such a major thing to just 
say to everybody that the majority of the retrospective grants are going to be stopped, 
"we've been given no warning, absolutely none." said that there had been no 
consultation, "we arc supposed to be a partnership group, how could we be partners if 
we're not consulted." GW said that he first saw it on the website and that it went on 
two weeks previous to this Partnership Group meeting. GW said that it is not 
engaging with us. CL said that they never really set out to provide retrospective 
grants except in exceptional circumstances and if they looked at most grant giving 
bodies, they all say on their websites 'we don't provide retrospective grants'. CL said 
that there are two tests they've got in their Caxton's deed; there's whether or not you 
qualify as an individual which has already been talked about and whether or not you 
can demonstrate charitable need. CL said it was much harder to assess charitable 
need in something that had already been purchased and paid for and just provide the 
receipt; given that Caxton's aim (he hoped they are already achieving this as 
discussed) is they're not going to have these long delays in processing applications, 
then he would hope that for most things people need, there shouldn't be a difficulty in 
applying prospectively. CL said when they started the first year of the charity they 
recognised that people might not necessarily know about Caxton straightaway so 
there is an interim period when they gave retrospective grants on the basis that people 
might not have been aware of Caxton so they took retrospective grants back to the 
start of the charity for a brief period and where it looked as if people were going to 
apply for something that had they known about Caxton earlier they would have 
agreed a grant for, they did that respectively, since then what they have tried to do is 
to say, "what are the circumstances where it would be reasonable to provide a 
retrospective grant and some of the one's we have identified and certainly those 
circumstances where you don't have the time to come to Caxton and apply and get a 
response, even though if we responded in the quickest time possible, even if we 
responded within a month or six weeks, you don't have the time to wait for that so 
this is an urgent need. One example might be if somebody did die suddenly and you 
had to pay for the funeral costs, we have certainly given funding for those 
retrospectively. There maybe circumstances where there is an emergency that we 
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have to deal with, something has broken down, water is pouring through your roof 
whatever it is, and again those are circumstances where its reasonable for people to 
say that there just wasn't the time to apply in advance." CL also said "the other 
category Caxton have identified, if something has fallen through a hole and has been 
sat with us for a while, somebody has waited a long time to get a response then the 
responsibility for that is ours." JB said "basically, if it wasn't retrospective at the time 
of the application, but its Caxton's fault that it has become a retrospective claim." CL 
said that for some things where its very clear that an urgent payment such as a funeral, 
it can be approved retrospectively, its taken on a 'case by case basis' and put it 
through the Welfare Committee and decide if somebody has got a reasonable case for 
making it retrospective. GRO_A  said she couldn't see what the problem 
was with buying something on a credit card and then applying to Caxton to be 
reimbursed. CL said that one difficulty is if somebody applied for funding for a piece 
of furniture for example, they may have decided to go and purchase something for 
£2,000 where Caxton would normally only give a grant for £1,000, but you've put it 
on your credit card, so that then creates a difficulty because if Caxton come back and 
say "well actually we were only going to give you a thousand," you've then got a 
thousand pounds to find, accepted that, she wouldn't be foolish enough to go out 
and spend a couple of thousand on something without getting the ok first, but said 
there were lots of things where you might spend a reasonable amount of money on 
buying say a washing machine, she would buy, spend the amount she would normally 
spend as being someone who hasn't got a huge amount of money. "What's wrong 
with doing that and putting it on your credit card?" CL said "it's a reasonable 
distinction that there are things for example if your washing machine has broken 
down, there is an argument for a retrospective grant there, if you're simply replacing 
something that's a bit worn out but you don't have to." [ J said he thought it was 
important and it was Caxton's responsibility for setting the goal for what people can 
apply for. L4 lasked if Caxton had thought of having application forms to apply for a 
grant instead of just having to write a letter. 

Rachel Youngman (RY) said that there were two areas here; "one is the fairness of the 
system, the other is the information about it as it works at the moment and there is so 
much confusion, "what we would love to be able to do (and I realise it's not as
straightforward at this and I apologise) is just publish some kind of frequently asked 
questions to help people to see this in the reality of the situation because probably any 
involvement is very cp . e..x_but if we can bring this back to some real life situations 
and there is one that GRO_AIs mentioned about carer's and washing machines, just 
some of this, because we get asked this the whole time and we don't always know the 
answers, but if we could have something, it doesn't get round the issue of when 
something is fair, or not fair, but at least it gives people some information and some of 
us would welcome something like that if we are able to send that out to members, on 
the website and so forth and we would be happy+ to work with Caxton to start to draw 
it up with some of our members as well." [oRo. asked if it had changed that much 
between applications, "for instance if someone was to apply for a washing machine do 
you on the whole say you are entitled to £250 towards it or does it vary depending on 
their circumstances? It seems to me if it's pretty much the same amount for each 
circumstance, then that is something Caxton could publish and share" (the campaign 
group members agreed). [GRO.Aj made the point that if she went to buy a washing 
machine, she wouldn't buy the cheapest washing machine, because that to her is a 
waste of money. 46 ►buys a better washing machine that uses less electricity (which 
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saves on electricity bill) but then if she were to apply, would that be taken into 
consideration, or would she just be given for the cheapest washing machine available 
which would be more expensive for her to run, and wouldn't last as long so therefore 
she would be applying again. GW said that he thought Caxton had maximums for 
what they are allowed, but they won't tell the community what they are.L i, said that 
surely we should know as it would make it so much easier!!+ jsaid that the most basic 
things that most people do have to cough up for now and again, a new washing 
machine/fridge etc, how much do Caxton allow? L i said they need replacing when 
they break down immediately. [ o]said that she washes every day and without her 
washing machine, she would not be able to do that.a!A said that some people have 
asked why it is only a proportion of the cost that Caxton covers. "Is it only a 
proportion in some cases and you cover the full cost of others?" CL said it depends, 
how much you pay if Caxton covers the full cost. AL said "let us take back the whole 
issue of the information that we can use fully provide through more organisations on 
Hepatitis C and on our own website in terms of the sort of scope of what we are doing 
at the moment, the expectations of our beneficiaries etc, we have been trying very 
hard to improve communications, we are hugely handicapped by the fact that we 
actually have lost staff or just haven't got anybody at the moment to do it with the 
challenges of MFT and its distribution of the reserves which took everybody's time 
for the last few months, but it is our aim to be much more clear about what we are 
able and not able to do and to help the beneficiaries to attain the benefit from the 
charitable resource, so let us take that back and see how best we can deal with it, 
because you know, we don't want people thinking 'well 1 don't know what we're 
suppose to be doing and getting anxious about things and shall I buy first, or shall I 
not buy', just let us take that back to see the best type of information that we can 
produce". 

GW asked if they would consider the issue of the retrospective grants being stopped 
as "this has been one of the biggest, if not the biggest problem that we have been 
dealing with on our forum, people arc up in arms about it, they feel that they have had 
a trap set for them because they wasn't aware of it, so what I am going to ask you to 
do today is to consider this; reverse the decision and say to people 'we are going to 
look at the retrospective grants that you've already been denied and going to set a date 
for say l' January 2014 and that's when it's going to apply. "«-; said that she doesn't 
think it should ever apply. GW said that he doesn't really, but if Caxton are going to 
do it, then at least let people know, people have only been told on a website, not 
everybody is on the website and even those that have internet access, don't always go 
on it. GW said that he keeps a very close eye on it, and saw that the first time it was 
put on there was about two weeks ago, so people have just gone ahead, and done the 
usual thing of thinking 'I think that could be done under a retrospective grant' putting 
applications in and being told 'no'. They feel like they have had the rug pulled from 
underneath them.i-Ra^ said that they should be made aware that retrospective grants 
might not be approved, that's fair enough, but she didn't think they should be pulled 
away completely. There should be quite a lot of circumstances where you can go and 
pay with your credit card and buy something and 

apps .  to Caxton to be reimbursed. 
AL said that she was going to revert this to the NWC o- said that CBC once raised 
this with Martin Harvey 18 months ago, CBC thrashed this out with him about; if you 
can just go out and buy something you can shop around for the best deal, for example 
your washing machine is on the blink, you might think, Currys have got a special 
offer on this washing machine, but its on for 2 weeks I want to go and get one. If you 
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wait for Caxton to approve, you lose that offer, you have to spend more, this is the 
sort of thing that happens, it is the same with getting paid in vouchers. AL said that 
they want to be sensible and fair and open about everything they do and she would 
like the NWC to consider retrospection in terms of what is reasonable for the normal 
person when they are faced with something going wrongGRo-aisaid that we are normal 
people, we've managed to budget all our lives, we are not going out to spend money 
unnecessarily. 

L said that they need to be communicating this to the entire beneficiary community 
and encourage people to look at the website; if they could communicate at least a 
couple of times a year more generally, that would seem appropriate. GW said that the 
only way to do it properly is by letter as not everybody is on the internet. AL agreed. 
GW said even people that are on the internet don't always look on the Caxton website 
so that very important decisions such as this decision with the retrospective grants 
absolutely must be made clear to the beneficiary community. RY said that they have 
a number of opportunities with the Haemophilia Society to write to their member's so 
could use that opportunity, certainly twice a year they send out their HQ magazine so 
there are other opportunities for the Society to have an input. ; asked if Caxton GRp.pi 

would consider letting people know that they have representative groups that they can 
approach so that when we come to these meetings we've got a base of opinion. GW 
said that a prime method of communication would be newsletters which CBC have 
been asking for since the beginning. AL said that she thought if the Haemophilia 
Society and the Hepatitis C Trust (they have been discussing that certainly with the 
Hepatitis C Trust and with Bernard) as a consequence of the appointment they are 
extraordinarily willing to help us in developing a communication with all their 
associates and members and that will probably be a more effective way because 
Caxton have got a very limited number of people on their database and that is one of 
their problems, they arc desperately trying to ensure that they can actually get in 
contact with (without breaching anybody's confidentiality) the wider community that 
they believed (and the department certainly believed) was out there right from the 
beginning, but haven't been able to despite their publicity, despite everybody on 
Skipton being told, it still seems a relatively small number of people. If these 
organisations that have that wider range can help with that communication then that 
would be a better idea.cr i said that if they are able to agree in developing a strategy
and policies it is very important to take on board what the membership groups were 
saying and we of course hear about people who are directly affected by contaminated 
blood whereas the Society have a very broad membership where the majority of the 
membership are really the younger generation that are coming through, those that are 
affected mostly by contaminants and the campaign issues they tend to come to the 
likes of ourselves. °_J asked if we could be part of the decision making before any 
final decisions are made in case we can add anything. -? asked what was the good of 
having a partnership group if we don't know what's happening until after it's 
happened, "we should know before and then we can say either 'yay or nay' ."! o.AJ.said 
that one of the major problems is when people are asked for proof that what 7t iey are 
applying for is needed because they have Hep C o.A;didn't think that she should have 
to prove that any of her needs are actually related to Hep C, because her financial 
need is related to her Hep C, its related to the fact that she has less earning power 
because she is not well enough to work, she wasn't well enough to work full time 
when she did work, and so her Hep C has caused her financial situation, why should 
she then have to link something that she needs to having Hep C. For instance -,F l 
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asked if she could have help with having a tooth crowned, and was told she needed to 
send evidence that she needed her tooth crowned because she's got Hep C, it's 
ridiculous. CL said that the general issue about the question of what you are claiming 
for is related to Hepatitis C had already been discussed and that is something that they 
will no longer be asking. GW asked if they could confirm if people apply for dental 
work or medical treatment or whatever, that they won't be asked to prove a link 
between the Hepatitis C and the medical condition or dentistry that they are about to 
undergo. CL said that was correct although that is not the same as saying that Caxton 
will give a grant for everything people apply for to do with medical treatment but they 
will not be asking that question any longer. GW tried to highlight the case of 
someone he knew who had a shocking time with Caxton and who was going through 
chemotherapy at the time. AL said that she knew all about the case but that she didn't 
think it was appropriate to breach people's confidentiality. GW replied "I never 
mentioned the name." AL responded "but we know who it is." GW replied "if you 
know, then I'm not breaching the confidentiality". 

Lo! !j► said that people's income are relative for example her husband could have been 
working and had an income of say £500,000 a year, suddenly he can't work, his 
income is reduced drastically. Somebody else might have been on £30,000 a year, 
their income could be reduced drastically; what the gentleman on £500,000 per year is 
used to is totally different to what the other gentleman is used to. I asked if Caxton 
would still pay to keep the upper standard of living as well as the lower standard of 
living. CL said that they didn't think they could. Obviously if somebody had been 
used to a very high standard of living that's reduced drastically then they would give 
them support on the basis of their need on their current income but that is not the 
same as supporting them to a standard that they have been used to. [ J said that their 
standard has been reduced because of Hepatitis C. [ J asked if Caxton see any 
responsibility of trying to regress the impact of hepatitis C. AL said that it's not what 
they have been set up to do. CL said that they have been set up to look at charitable 
need and that means that essentially they are addressing needs based on poverty. JP 
said that charitable need could be actually interpreted a lot more broadly and it could 
actually lift somebody not out of poverty but actually towards help maintaining a 
situation that is not to their detriment. AL said that fortunately they don't have 
anybody who has dropped from £500,000 that we know of. AL said that what they 
aim to do is deal fairly, equitably and on a level playing field with the charitable 
requirements of beneficiaries who apply to Caxton, that's what they try and do and we 
know what the charitable need direction is that Caxton have. GW asked what they 
classed as the poverty threshold. Al, said that we would come back to that as it was 
further on. 

Winter Fuel Payments 

ate; asked if they were going to be increased in light of the gas and electric going up L.....J 

by 10%. AL said that the board decided to stick with the practice of the government 
in terms of winter fuel payments and to send it out at £500 non means tested per 
household. It was discussed at length, bearing in mind that Caxton are already getting 
a number of requests as they usually do anyway for additional help for heating and 
winter payments from a number of individuals. This will be reviewed next year in the 
light of CPI. CL said that they are going to pay the same amount as they did last year 
£500 which is as Ann said, non means tested and what they didn't want to do was to 
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increase the amount of non means tested benefits but focus on people's needs so if 
people having received their winter fuel payment still needed further help with their 
fuel payments then that will he looked at.L j said it would be useful if they knew that 
as it sounded like the committee would give you a £500 winter fuel payment it makes 
it sound as though that is all you're going to get. GW said that this is the first again 
that we've heard of it. Gw.A said it hasn't, people are coming forward for additional 
support. AL said that they were trying to get it out early this year and they can 
certainly put on the website the fact that this does not preclude any applications. DT 
made the point that these are the sort of things we need to be pre-warned about. GW 
said "you've just said you'll put it on the website, it comes back to the same issue, 
information; communication and people don't know, that's the problem, they are not 
aware of this so they need to be written to. If you are not going to do a newsletter 
then people need to be written to on a regular basis informing them of these major 
changes." AL said that she hoped they will have a major change to be able to 
communicate with them soon. 

Regular Payments Systems 

AL said "in light of the evidence that has been coming through the National Welfare 
Committee we have recognised as a board that there are a number of people who are 
on very low incomes who actually ask for very, very little and that we should give 
consideration to whether or not we should apply to the Department of Health for a 
'top up' scheme based on tangible evidence of low incomes for our beneficiaries. We 
have briefly discussed the outline policy (this is actually what we think would he good 
to do) for those, designed to give support to those on the lowest incomes and the 
Department has not said 'push off, go away' which is good, bearing in mind that the 
Department of Health is notorious for not having any money at all and everybody 
having to save governments so much per year, so before Caxton submit this case 
(we've done some work on what would be a sensible approach in terms of tangible 
evidence that's coming through the Welfare Committee, but also working with the 
Department for Work and Pensions with their specialist group on what's poverty or 
not, looking at a variety of other schemes that are being run throughout the UK, but 
firstly before submitting anything to the Department, we wanted to have your views 
of what you think the principles of such a scheme might contain so that we can 
incorporate that." BGROA! said "what you're saying is people on low benefit you would 
make them all a regular payment rather than have to ask for grants." AL said that 
they could also ask for grants, they are not precluded.t6RoAjasked how low they would 
go for payments because some people are borderline, they are not on benefits but they 
don't get very much. AL said that they understand that. CL said that it wouldn't be 
just for people on benefits, it would also be for people on low incomes generally, 
there are a lot of people that aren't applying. LG.?± asked how they defined low 
income. AL said that's what they've been discussing. !GRO-Al said that's what she was 
trying to get through before when she was giving an example of someone on 
£500,000 and someone on £20,000; its didn't matter what your income was, when you 
loose your job through ill health, you've got the added expense of extra heating, food, 
everything else, but not only that, you've lost income so whoever is on a higher 
income, their poverty is relative to those on a lower income, they might have more 
money coming in, but they're still living in poverty compared to what they were 
doing. AL said that they wanted to know what we thought before presenting this 
case. 
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CL said that the key principals of the subject they have been looking at; the first is a 
key principle that they don't want to see any of their registrants living below the 
poverty line.LJ asked "which poverty line?" CL said "there is the government 
recognised poverty line for none disabled, that's the first thing, we have too many 
people coming to us whose income's of 5,7, £8,000 per year income level, which is 
well below nybody's definition of poverty and we want a scheme that takes them 
above that."-,!!. i asked if that would include the carer's in their own right. CL said 
"in looking at any definition of poverty, they need to recognise it doesn't take any 
account of living with illness and disability which needs to be taken account of and as 
Ann said, we would also recognise, even if you are taking people above the poverty 
line that's not necessarily going to enable people to afford the sort of big purchases, 
the emergencies that happen to everybody, so we would still want a grant system on 
top of that to help people deal with those, I think its rccognising that a regular
payment scheme will hopefully help people manage the day to day things better." IGRo,a 

asked if it would be fair to say that Caxton are seeing from people that there is a 
disparity between their income and their outgoings because of the impact of the 
disease is not enabling them to reach a level playing field and therefore that leads to 
more grant situations. CL said "one of the benefits of having the information we do 
have is that it does highlight where there is that disparity where people are happy to 
accept it and in some cases we've asked people to get advice, from our money 
management, Jane Bellis, to help people get back on track." [ j referred to the 
minutes from February where it seemed to be suggested that you get people to alter 
their lifestyle to accommodate the impact of Hepatitis C as apposed to be able to rely 
on the Trust to help them. CL said that there needs to be a combination of both, as 
CL's interpretation of charitable need but what they are about is helping people to 
maintain a living standard of whatever that happened to be. "We're helping them to 
manage their lives and sometimes we try to help people manage their own finances 
and after that help them through the process, so, its always good that people have help 
rather than getting into spiralling debt and we've seen some examples of that come to 
us and we try to help people get out of that debt trap as soon as possible, but that isn't 
always best done just by helping them with their credit payments, its helping them to 
actually manage." GW said that this brings him to a key point he wanted to raise 
today. "Words such as `offer' and `help', 'offer of help from a benefit adviser Neil 
Bateman', `offer of help from Jane Bellis, the debt counsellor'; what we've seen (and 
I've seen a few examples of it now) its not so much as an offer, its coming across as 
more of a condition and people feel that the language used in some of the letters that 
they are receiving is such that if you don't accept this offer, then you may be refused 
any further grants. Now, can we have an assurance that that will not be the case, if 
people (for whatever reason) decide that they would rather not use a benefit advisor or 
they would rather not use a debt advisor, that they will not be penalised in any way 
and they will not have the grants removed from them." CL said that it was difficult to 
give a blanket assurance on it, because they have certainly seen cases where people 
are getting themselves into serious financial difficulty and they have been helping 
them with that, help has not assisted them in getting out of their difficulties so there 
needs to be some kind of intervention. CL couldn't quote specific cases as that would 
be inappropriate to illustrate it, but there are circumstances (there aren't many of 
them, but a few) where people are continuing with difficulties because of that 
imbalance between income and expenditure, but they are more insistent on them 
getting some money management advice to help them out. What they are trying to do 
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in those circumstances is where people take up the money management advice, they 
have a plan to deal with their situation, that helps them then to provide additional 
financial assistance to help them through their financial planning. JB said "there is 
usually more than one option, its about the level of engagement of the individual, the 
extent to which the options can actually be implemented; its different in each case but 
its never just do this one thing, its usually a whole range of things because when 
people are in those situations where their income and expenditure is in a quite 
significant imbalance, they normally have multiple kind of debts and issues and so, its 
fair to say that the majority of people who they have had to work with closely on this, 
where we have kind of made it conditional, at the end of it, they are grateful for that 
support." CL said "everything is done on a 'case by case' basis; they certainly see 
situations where people, it's clear in some cases that we are seeing the same. Where 
people come back every month for something, and you see there is an imbalance 
between income and expenditure, you begin to sense that there maybe more 
problems." JB said that the frequent requests for grants are just a symptom of 
something much bigger, that someone might not even recognise they can get help 
with and that's also been the case. CL said that as a result of those interventions there 
have been certainly cases where people have discovered an entitlement to benefits 
they weren't aware of and where people develop a plan for going forward. JB said 
people are getting debt reduced, those kind of things, which then without intervention 
of a specialist they can't help them. "I think it's fair to say from our experience it's 
generally seen as a positive. GW said that the danger is where people are very private 
and they don't want people poking about their business whether it's a benefits advisor 
or whether it's a debt counsellor, those people could be failed because they won't 
receive any more help. AL said that "I don't think we've said that." GW said that in 
letters it is saying 'may', "that's another thing, if you're going to stop the help, then 
say 'we are going to stop', don't leave it hanging because then people again, don't 
know where they stand. If you're going to say to people `we're going to stop your 
grants if you don't accept help from this person or that person, tell them, don't allude 
to it with `maybe' because then they don't know where they stand." GW said `let's 
call a spade a spade', not need to, not offer of help, just explain what it is. You're 
telling them, you're actually telling them "you will accept this offer of help or you 
won't get any more grants" and make it as plain as that and then people know where 
they stand." CL said "I feel unhappy with ultimatums that are that stark to be honest." 

[Ro. j said that people just want you to be honest with them and not 'beat about the 
bush'. GW said that people don't know where they stand, "may, what does 'may' 
mean? `you.  max not, 'you may have the grant stopped', 'you may not have the grant 
stopped'?" GRanj said that she wouldn't know from one end of the week to the next 
what to ask Caxton for, "I know I can apply for a carer's break, and I know my 
husband can apply for household items, but that's it, what else?" 

I«RJ'•said "there is major irony in all of this including the regular payment because the 
Macfarlane Trust were here 25 years ago and we said the same thing when we set up 
Caxton and nobody listened and it was the same. We saw improvements with the 
Macfarlane Trust when they finally, finally recognised and got round to printing 
office guidelines that stated what people could and couldn't apply for, how to claim 
quickly, what they could spend, and its the same with the regular payments, its 
roughly the same period of time since Caxton has been established that they are now 
getting round to talking about bridging the gap between income and expenditure that 
needs the support. The Macfarlane Trust was exactly the same 25 years ago.' Ruw~said 
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that a lot of people have died in that time and never got the benefit of the 
improvements and the same is happening here with Caxton beneficiaries; they're 
dying e  made the point that the Macfarlane Trust didn't start to get the basic level 
of support improved to a more reasonable level until after Archer five years ago; he 
said "I hope it's not going to take 20 years to find similar kind of support with 
Caxton." AL said that they certainly hope so. AL said "we would like to know 
whether or not you want to tell us anything about what you would like to set_in.,a 'top 
up' scheme so we can include it in our proposal, because it's important." ??±j asked 
when the proposal was due. Al responded "fairly swiftly." [ -J said that he had 
concerns about the regular payments in respect that we are going through a phase at 
the moment asking for a better settlement. "This to me sets a preference and I don't 
want that because we're asking for a 'one off' payment so I wouldn't want that to go 
forward, not yet." GRo-Msaid that "once this goes in, they will take it on board that 
people are happy because people •have contributed towards it and this is what people 
want. This is not what we want.'LGR? Jsaid "what about those people who are living in 
real poverty, they haven't got the time to wait_for a final settlement." [Gno.aj said that 
Caxton is there for them to apply for the hel 'GRo'said that it's not workin • for them. 
AL said "can I say something political (which I would normally not do) I think the 
board feels very strongly about the regular payments but we do need in all conscience 
to recognise the evidence that's in front of us about people who are living well below 
any recognised poverty line and actually come to us and how on earth they are 
managing, I have no idea. I fully appreciate the push and certainly the publicity that 
has recently been afforded to you, by you on trying to get final recompense for what 
has happened, and I understand that absolutely, there is a huge push going on at the 
moment. In terms of timing, I think we need to have a discussion about timing 
because we would hate to do anything that makes you feel as if it would block any 
settlement (that would not be very helpful.)'t i thought it was important that we 
establish the means to look at this, r we don't want to jump the gun'. AL's point was 
how long was that going to take?.GRo-► said "could we say while Caxton is still in 
existence, we will agree to it, we would agree to a 'top up fund'?" AL said "we will 
make it absolutely clear that this is not precluding, the intention is not to preclude any 
discussion at Prime Ministerial level relating to the longstanding concerns of the 
campaign groups in respect of recognition that this has happened and an apology, and 
your plea over the past 30 years for true and final recognition and recompense for the 
damage done." AL said "we will not have a problem with that, but on the other hand, 
we will make it very clear that as part of this discussion that's a core principal, but I 
don't think that in all conscience Caxton (as long as it exists) can defer making a 
claim to the Department for additional resources for a 'top up scheme' given the cases 
that are coming through." [GRO.AJ asked how they would envisage the top ups to go? 
"Would it be to the family or an individual top up, because don't forget carer's could 
have gone to work but they can't because they've got to stay at home so they're losing 
their income as well. 1 as a carer, in my own right, receive £3,083.60 a year, who 
could live on that, who could even exist on that because I can't." two. said that her 
income is merely a state pension and she has got no other income, her husband has 
got a pension as well, but why should he pick up the tab?,aRo•+,agreed:•-,AL asked if .._._._._.. 
there were any other principal we would like to see considerably. l°RoaJ said it was 
obvious that Caxton had gone into some detail with this, and asked if they could say 
how far they've got and what there thoughts were. GW asked how it had come about, 
was it a decision that the board had made or was there any input from the DoH on 
this. AL said no, they've had no input from the department, she said that they have 
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very informally discussed with them the principal, what would their approach be "as 
there is no point in us putting this amount of work into doing this if they will just say 
,no we don't want to do it'. It would be silly, so we've had very, very informal 
discussion with them about the principal of a 'top up scheme' on the basis on the sort 
of evidence that we are now seeing or able to present, would they consider any 
application we would make, bearing in mind the resources available to them and 
they've haven't said 'push off . That has encouraged us." 

6 ~ asked what level they could expect the income to go up to. JB said "the most 
helpful thing to say is that it would; what they would be looking to do was to establish 
something where it was being measured against objective external measures of things 
like household income, and poverty so that it wasn't just about, for examplei' Jknows 
one of the arguments that sometimes gets made against the Macfarlane scheme is that 
it doesn't reflect household composition and so its how many people are in the 
household, is it a single person living with their parents or is it a husband and wife 
with 3 or 4 children, because each additional person, it causes the need for greater 
income in order to sustain those. There needs to be set against whatever we do, it 
needs to be set against some objective measure which takes into account precise 
household and recognised external measures.' ,°! said that it seems as though there is 
a basic external measure that you can go to and that's the national living wage, there 
is a minimal standard wage before you measure the impact on the medical need. o o.* 
said that the living wage is about £26,000 per year, and then additional costs related to 
illness and so on, that gives you a minimum basic starting point. 6R said we need to 
stop going round and round, and decide what the threshold is s;  said that they're not 
at the moment, what they are saying is that there are a number of external measures 
they could look at like median household income, there are things like the Joseph 
Roundtree Foundation, the national living wage, "but we're looking at external 
measures of poverty and household income and at the end of the day what we are able 
to do will be heavily influenced by what level of funding the DoH are prepared to 
give us. Ann said at the start that there are some principals that we have looked at 
which is about, no-one should be living below the poverty line, there should be some 
way of recognising the additional costs of living with Hepatitis C that there will still 
be a grant because we know that, the lowest settlement that the department might give 
on this where it says' right ok you can pay everyone up to the poverty line, doing that 
you are not going to make everyone rich, paying everyone up to the poverty line." 
AL said that it's the ability to be independent. JB said "for people who are only on 3 
or £4,000 a year that would make a significant difference for them to be able to feed 
and clothe themselves, buy basic necessities, everyone knows that on that level of 
income you still aren't necessarily in a position to save for the bigger items when your 
boiler goes, or when your roof develops a massive hole again, or all those kind of 
things, so that's why we would want to be having a grant system alongside that, so 
that when people still have those capital needs, we could still do that, so its not a 'one 
or the other'; we think it's a combination of the two, both those things are quite 
important. It needs to be an external objective measure which reflects the additional 
costs of living with Hepatitis C that still allows us to fund people for those extra 
capital purchases that it's still very difficult to save for, but at the end of the day, what 
we are able to do will very much depend on what level of funding from the 
department, so we can't really be more specific than that at this stage, that's why we 
are asking you about what your thoughts are on the principals of that. z  Ro said they 
shouldn't take into account, a number of benefits which are related to health etc, as 
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this shouldn't diminish the support received. AL/CL agreed. [ .J said what may 
outweigh certain income issues would be living with Hepatitis C which could help a 
lot more people than just those living on that poverty line as there are dietary needs, 
heat, clothes that sort of thing. 46 ►Isaid that he was all in favour of someone who is 
on a low income getting some ongoing support, but he hoped they were going to set it 
at a sensible level. AL said that this was additional money they're going to have to 
acquire: Ems; said that it would be a big help to those people who are on a very low 
income and I know there are a lot of people out there who don't actually apply to 
Caxton very much, there are some people (its human nature) who make a lot of 
applications and get the very most out of it they can but there are going to be some 
people (and I know there are people out there) who sit back, they're on a low income, 
they don't apply very much because they are just not that kind of person to push 
themselves forward, it would help those initially. CL said that that's what struck him 
to begin with, that what really when he first started thinking we need a regular 
payment scheme; it is exactly the situation «! described. le said it makes things 
fairer. .Ai said "if you are in social housing, you haven't got big bills anyway, you 
haven't got new boilers to pay for, you haven't got any window and doors to pay for, 
so what else is there?"[«!osaid that she agreed witha Aabout the dangers of this with 
the department ( .said that was only his opinion), but Caxton exists anyway so why 
not have them dealing out their money in a different way so that it's more fair? L!"
said that he had said to Ann and Charles as long as in some respects, we can make it 
clear.Ib it's not something that we have thought of. JB agreed that it wasn't our 
idea.[ 0-A] said he has fought for so many years to get what we're getting now and then 
we're trying to get something better, we've never had a better time in trying to 
achieve something. AL agreed with that. AL and JB said that was not the intention 
and they will make that point extremely strongly, "the other point we will make is, its 
all too easy really, government will say 'ok, we are going for this, there's the poverty 
line, we'll go for that' we are going to press the case that we have to be more 
ambitious for the community because it has already been recognised by the 
department of health that they are going to have to fight with the treasury, that there 
are additional costs of living with these acquired diseases and infections so we will 
push all the time that we have got to be above the rock bottom, although many people 
are below that as well." fto ] said that if they include in their application to just remind 
them of the grants that have been taken away from the community to which the 
disease of people did have now, "you know yourself we can't have certain grants 
including dietary things and things like that, and you're there to provide all these 
monies and amenities for people to get on with their life."[«;said it is quite clear as 
well that if the department try to take this on to form any other settlement, that 
settlement would have to be approved by the wider community. AL said that they 
need the principal agreed first. 

GRO-A asked if the partnership group will be kept informed of what they're asking for as 
it progresses. JB said that her understanding is that the very detail of it, the 
department will want it to be kept confidential. AL said "but certainly we can tell you 
exactly where we have got to and the phraseology that we're using to cover the points 
that you've raised." [o.Aj  said "as a partnership, we have to be a partnership, it's no 
good you going off and doing everything and coming back and saying its all been 
done, because then it's not a partnership." jasked what the envisaged timescale 
was. AL said "they would need to get it in pretty sharpish because its got to before 
next year's funding, for the next financial year and the way in which the treasury 
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sweeps up, the department's got to do its overarching additional bill which the 
Treasury I can imagine will look at extremely carefully because of the pressures that 
there are within the Department of Health's budgets and then it will apply to the 
Department of Health so its unlikely we will know anything until right at the end of 
March, if not the beginning of April really." CL said that once we know, (assuming 
we do get the extra money we are after) and there will be time before we can actually 
get the scheme running. L i asked if this is an additional project. JB said that it is 
additional funding but it will all be tied up with the overall allocation, it won't be 
instead of. AL confirmed it will be 'as well as'. AL said "they have only done some 
rough calculations at the moment, but it will be considerable, we believe we will need 
a considerable and if this doesn't flush out the community to make applications, I 
really don't know what else we can do." 

GW said that AL mentioned that they will be basing this on some tangible 
information he asked what they meant by `tangible information'. JB said that this was 
the external bench mark related to some external measurements. AL said "the NWC 
has evidence of the cases that are coming through which have allowed Caxton to 
consider this which the department will know about, they won't know about the cases 
but they will know about the sorts of issues that are coming through and then we'll 
have to give them options because that is what is always expected in terms of any 
government grants, but to look at recognisable evidence in terms of what our limits on 
poverty, this, that and the other so a variety of schemes that have credibility, we don't 
want to just pluck a figure out of the air which we can't justify on the basis of 
somebody else's credited work, but we also will be, we know because our allocation 
is only annual that we will have to revisit this if they agree. If they agree, it's the first 
stage. We will have to revisit this on an annual basis anyway, and in the light of 
experience, what's coming through." CL said that because of the way Caxton was set 
up, it will have to be based on need. GW asked what it will lead to; "will it lead to 
people filling in census forms once a year?" JB said it will have to be decided. AL 
said that they would want something that reflects reality.4aRoj asked if they could 
include the increase in living costs and so on and to maintain. AL said that they can 
put that in. AL said that she would let us know how they get on. GW wanted it 
clarifying that it would mean filling in census forms once a year. JB said that it would 
be something like that because you'd have to be doing an assessment of people's 
income in order to know what you are going to top them up to. GW asked if that 
would still mean you wouldn't have to include DLA, Child Benefit etc. JB said that 
all that detail would have to be worked out when they know how much money 
they've got. GW said that at the moment, the forms are on the website and are still 
asking for that information. JB said that there was a whole load of stuff that would 
need to be re-looked at.GRo-nasked if there was any way they could make those 'more 
simpler' for people that have difficulties in filling out forms. JB said that before any 
kind of assessment that would need to be done for a regular payment scheme would 
be sent out to every individual that was eligible to apply. L~ !said that the last health 
minister, Anna Soubry said that she would approach Caxton to make the form more 
simpler (she used those words) for the membership to fill in, asked if she 
approached them.Lwtasked why there was a stage 1 form and a stage 2 form because 
they are virtually the same. JB said that one of them actually asks for more detail. 
on' asked why they can't just send out the stage 2 form and forget the 1. JB said that 

they may potentially do that and they are looking at doing a grant application form, 
and also getting to the point where the kind of the information about people's finances 
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"we will be in a position to send back to you what you sent to us last time and those 
that are still correct and those that need updating and those kinds of things but just to 
standardise things, the organisation has been going for just about 2 years now and 
we're still in the stages where there is progression and development and we can look 
back on the experiences of the last 6 months or 12 months and then do things 
differently as a result of that." [Ro.A] asked if the Minister had approached them. JB 
said that she didn't think it was about the forms, they talked about thinks like. [ofo.A 
said "that's something else they said they would do, but they haven't done, it's just a 
question I wanted to know." AL said that the Minister put it in the way that she was 
not satisfied with the communication process and I think she will have wrapped up 
forms within that comment on the process. 

AOB 

AL talked about the meeting that they wanted open to the beneficiary group. "In view 
of the fact that we will go down to 2 and a half staff, in January and February and we 
want to make the general forum that is open to all the beneficiaries as meaningful and 
as productive as possible for everybody concerned, that means, we want to have some 
speakers and this and that and the other, and to have views from you on what you 
think might be useful in that, and therefore we've got nobody in to do all the 
background work to help put this together as a successful day. I wilt propose that to 
make it meaningful we defer the date until the end of March and at that time we might 
have much more evidence and knowledge about what's going to happen with 'top up 
scheme'; what's happening for the rest of the year; what has happened during the rest 
of the year and other things  said she thought it would be better later in the year 
because people are travelling a distance, some of them are elderly, they don't want to 
besetting off in the dark and getting home in the dark. AL said that was a fair point, 

said that better weather encourages people. Middle of May was decided. [GRO- j 

suggested having a different location to London for the next meeting, maybe 
Birmingham. JB said that they can look outside London. 

!— drew their attention to the leaflets received when we first registered with Caxton. 
Number 7 Can I visit your office? Yes of course, just let us know when you want to 
come so a member of staff you want to see can arrange to be available, or take pot 
luck.[~fo asked if this still stood in terms of the leaflet. JB said that the leaflet isn't 
used anymore and hasn't been used for a long time{ ] said that CBC have been 
branded as criminals (as you know) turning up and taking pot luck, visiting the office. 
AL said that the two things were an entirely different scenario. The problem was the 
unannounced visit of a number of individuals with which the staff could not have 
possibly have dealt with[oRo jsaid "we did explain when we arrived that all we wanted 
to do was drop in a document we had to give to you, and to pop our heads in the door 
and say hello. Fair enough nobody was available to actually talk to us, we popped our 
heads in the door and said hello and we've been branded as criminals and you've 
increased security measures." GW asked what does `increased security' mean, why? 
"We did nothing apart from visit and introduce ourselves." AL said "we've had this 
conversation at least twice in the past I have said what I said and I hoped that we had 
all moved on from that." GW and agreed.L -A said "we thought we had moved on 
until we saw your minutes on your website for everyone to see, it makes it look as 
though we turned up with machete's and balaclava's, it really does paint us in a very, 
very poor light as if we'd turned up threatening violence and it really wasn't like that 
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at all was it, come on!' 1a said "do we look like violent types?" AL said "this was a 
regrettable incident and it's now behind us and that's the last I'm going to say about 
it." GW asked if they were going to take those minutes off the website as it "brands 
us as completely unreasonable people and we're not having it." AL said "if that 
destroys a partnership relationship in its entirety then I will be willing to consider it, 
but actually they don't read like that and I think we've moved on from it, but the 
leaflet doesn't apply any more I'm afraid." GW said "that's it? Unbelievable, this 
isn't a partnership group meeting, it's a dictatorship." GW asked if we were `clients 
or primary beneficiaries'. AL said "you are representatives of the campaign groups 
which is why you're here." GW asked if the people are `clients or primary 
beneficiaries'. AL said "she didn't really want to have this discussion, but you entered 
the premises without prior permission, not for the purposes stated in there (the leaflet) 
and there was great concern amongst the staff endorsed by an independent who just 
happened to be there, and it did cause concern and the board was very concerned 
about it." GW said that he thought their reaction to it was completely unreasonable. 
GW said "also in your minutes, you (AL) made the decision apparently with the 
board's back up to start calling us 'clients' instead of `primary beneficiaries' because 
you had concerns. What concerns did you have?" AL said that she thought 
beneficiaries was a demeaning word "but have listened very carefully and you are 
now called `beneficiaries' because that's what you want to be called." GW said 
"primary beneficiaries". AL said that not all Caxton beneficiaries are `primary 
beneficiaries'. GW said that he didn't think they had the authority to actually change 
the word because in the deed. JB/AL said that they haven't changed the terminology 
in the deed. GW tried to quote from the deed and said that it was an important issue 
and he would like to raise it. AL said "if you want to be called beneficiaries, you be 
called beneficiaries but there is a stigma attached to the word `beneficiaries' and we 
wanted to have a more understanding relationship .I think and calling people 
beneficiaries is rather.." GW said, "you wanted, but you didn't include us in the 
decision making". AL said "No, we didn't have a partnership group meeting by then 
because the previous Caxton administration had not chosen to do so." GW said "you 
have acted outside your authority, the deed says that we are to be called primary 
beneficiaries, you made the decision to start calling us clients, you had no authority to 
do that." AL said "and it has been rescinded, you know that." GW said "I don't 
know it at all, you've never been told me anything. I had that letter from the Minister 
saying that she would be calling us beneficiaries, I've never had that communication 
from you." AL said that they cannot disclose a private conversation with the 
Minister, but there we go. GW said "we've never been told from you". 

AL "Have a good journey home and thank you very much for coming." 
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Please Note: The following transcript is taken from CBC's recording of the 
Caxton Foundation Partnership Group meeting and has not been agreed with 
any other person and/or group that attended however this is a genuine attempt 
to reflect accurately the discussions which took place at that meeting. 

Caxton Foundation Partnership Group Meeting 5 August 2014 at IBIS 
Birmingham Central, Ladywell Walk, Birmingham, B5 4ST 

In attendance:-

Jan Barlow - CEO Caxton (JB) 
Ann Lloyd - Chair Caxton (AL) 
Charles Lister - Vice Chair Caxton (CL) 
Glenn Wilkinson - Contaminated Blood Campaign (GW) 

! GRO-A !- Manor House Group (DF) 
GRO-A Manor House Group (EB) 

_ GRO_A -- Taintedblood (JP) 
Liz Carroll - Iaemophilia Society CEO (LC) 

Apologies: E GRO A - Manor House Group/Vice Chair Taintedblood 
Charles Gore _Hepatitis C Trust CEO 

Widows' representative 
Dan Farthing — Haemophilia Scotland CEO 

Ann Lloyd (AL) thanked everyone for coming and as there were a number of new 
people, thought it would be helpful if they all introduced themselves. 

Charles Lister (CL) --- Vice chair of the Caxton Foundation and just so you know, 
since we last met, I've stepped down from the Welfare committee because I have 
been doing it since Caxton started." Glenn Wilkinson (GW) "thank goodness for 
that." CL "I'm glad you appreciate my efforts, thank you." GW "Thank you very 
much for leaving because your existence on the NWC wasn't appreciated by the 
community." AL "Thank you. The person who has taken over is Richard Finlay 
from Northern Ireland. GW: "Is he NHS or Department of Health?" AL: "No 
actually — he's education". Jan Barlow (JB): "I'm Jan Barlow, I'm Chi_ef_Executive.'_' 
Victoria Prouse (VP): "Victoria Prouse I'm Director of Operations." GRO-A 
G̀RO,A, t _---GRO_A 3 Manor House Group and this is my third decade of 
campaigning and I also had a liver transplant 15 years ago and I seem to have spent 
most of that extra life still campaigning for something that should have been put right 
a long, long time ago, I've just basically wasted these steps of a gift of life I've been 
given. The sooner we stop going to these meetings the better." GW: "well said 

IGRO,A ' AL: "as you knov!r GRo-A; we are unable to do anything at all about that." I aRO-A 

"I know you're not but that's just..." AL: "I know, we appreciate that." GW: "You 
have made it worse though. Glenn Wilkinson, Contaminated Blood Campaign." 

GRO _A_  ry : _ G_ RO-A ,Manor House Group and also representative of 
carers." Liz Carroll (LC): Liz Carroll, Chief Executive of the Haemophilia Society." 

GRO-A s ` GRO-A Taintedblood Chair." AL: "Thank you." CL: "I 
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was just going to say, to be strictly correct, we should just check that as this meeting 
is being recorded that nobody has any objections to that." Nobody objected. 

AL: "The minutes of the last meeting, has anybody any corrections?" GW: "Yes, 
GRO_A  is listed as taking part in that meeting; he attended but if you 

remember the original place was due to take place at the Rochester Hotel, but it didn't 
have disabled access so was_ rearranged at last minute at the Westminster Kingsway 
College but;  GRO_A  'had nowhere else to go so that was the only reason he 
sat in the meeting, he never took part in the meeting at all and he did made that clear 
in a letter afterwards." AL: "Right." GW;_"Also, we've only received these minutes 
(your minutes) in the last few days. oRaA1"I only received mine Saturday." GW: 
"We've not really had chance to go through them in any detail."[oRo.Ai'if possible if we 
were to have a copy of the minutes ahead of the meetings it would give everybody a 
chance to go through them." AL: "absolutely".[GRo-n "also, if we could also have a list 
of action points as well as earlier minutes so that we've got some continuation if 
either one of us can't attend and it will also help us to judge how well the whole group 
is performing; do we actually achieve anything or are we just repeating the same 
things again and again." AL: "Thank you L OA "We have a number of matters 
arising." (awl "There was one last thing, a correction on the conditions of your 
minutes. Also discussed was the potential for ongoing payments. We also discussed 
what we thought the levels of payments should be were we able to achieve what we 
wanted and I'd suggested that it should be connected with the national averaging 
wage which is approximately £28,000." 

AL: "We have a number of matters arising. The first one is the recruitment of the 
Board member of experience of living with Hepatitis C. Margaret hoped to be here 
today but she has unfortunately not been able to do that but she has allowed me to 
speak on her behalf about how she met the criteria for a Board member with 
experience of living with Hepatitis C.  She was. infected by a blood transfusion on the 
birth of her first child in 1987,;  ----------------- GRO-A -- -------------------

GRO-A 

GRO-A   j Liz Carroll (LC): "What was her name?" AUGW: 
`Margaret Kennedy.." AL: "The second matter arising was you wanted to raise..." 
Jan Barlow (JB): "Yes, that was just to introduce Victoria today. I reported at the last 
meeting that we had instructed the Welfare team and Victoria is appointed following 
that. We also have a new finance manager starting next week. I think it's very rare 
that people speak directly to the finance department but in case you do the new 
finance director is called Joyce Materego and she will be joining us on Monday." 
GW: "Can I just cover a point about Margaret Kennedy? This was in an email, a 
latest email I sent to you on 23 June 2014 (it will probably be best if I just read it 
out) 'We note Margaret Kennedy is now listed on the Caxton Foundation website, 
could you tell us if Margaret Kennedy has been given a specific job title or role, 
because there's nothing listed on there. We note in Margaret Kennedy's description 
that she has a long history within the NHS, as you know the community's 
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understanding and expectation was that this new board member will be an individual 
directly infected or affected from within our own community as we felt that the board 
consisted of too many individuals with history within the NHS or Department of 
Health.' We already know now she is an infected individual, no disrespect to this 
lady but she is still NHS and we did specifically request that whoever the individual 
was, it was somebody from within our own community who didn't have a connection 
with the NHS or Department of Health." AL: "As you know, your society 
(Haemophilia Society) and the Hep C Trust helped us very much with the recruitment 
of the individual, we actually could not restrict to any specific or actually remove any 
specific individual because they happen to work in a particular field. What we had to 
do was to adjudge the individual's capability and we had a number of people who 
applied for this position to the most able of the individuals and the most able in terms 
of their understanding, appreciation and personal experiences in dealing with the 
infection and it is on that basis that she was appointed." `GRoAJ"it's very good that she's 
got experience of Hep C but you understand the suspicions that keep creeping in here 
is that it's just such a coincidence that there is so much of a connection with the NHS 
or government whenever there's involvement on the board or a new appointment and 
given that those suspicions exist, I think it is something you should be bearing in 
mind and you could have done during the interview process." AL: "I don't think I 
was quite so acutely aware of the real suspicion that is within but I think I only really 
became aware of the acute suspicion after our last Partnership meeting L! j "I thought 
you would have noticed from previous PG meetings as well. AL: "not necessarily, 
no, they haven't been specific about anybody from the health service being totally 
outside." GW: "Our campaign group's made it abundantly clear and I would have real 
concerns if you didn't realise that, that's a very basic fact that you should have been 
aware of right from the very beginning." AL: "Ok." aRo- I "getting away from the 
NHS, I brought this up before, the Haemophilia Community have different and more 
exacerbated problems than the whole blood community, wouldn't it be fair to have 
somebody who knew what it was like to actually live with Haemophilia on the Board 
as well? They could given an input on the problems of haemophiliacs are like 
because haemophiliacs have not only got the hepatitis C problem, they've also got the 
bleeding disorder which makes life triply difficult." AL: "It is certainly something 
we could discuss with the Board and consider." [GRaa "And also somebody who has 
knowledge of living on state benefits because reading the board members, they are all 
frorn highly paid jobs, they haven't got a clue what it's like to on a Thursday night, 
know that you do not get paid until tomorrow when you haven't got enough money to 
put in the electric. They haven't got a clue." GW: "Well said.'1 o. "They also tend to 
have been infected with Hepatitis B as well as other things which also exacerbate the 
liver damage." AL: "Certainly I shall report that back to the board and will take it up 
with them, thank you." 

GRO-A ] "How many office staff do you have in total now and are they all 
full time, part time?" JB: "Caxton has the equivalent of 3 'h staff in total. In the 
offices we have 9 staff and they work across 5 organisations — Macfarlane, Skipton, 
Caxton, MFET, Eileen Trust and people's time is split across those so we don't have 
3 '/2 bodies times is only taken up with Caxton. Nicole who you've probably had 
contact with on the grants side, she works solely for Caxton but the other people like 
myself, I work half time for Caxton and half time for Macfarlane, Victoria does the 
same, the finance manager's time is split between all 5 and so it goes on, so people 
are kind of split across the organisations, but in total it comes to about 3 'h." [ o.± 
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"There was a limit wasn't there?" JB: "Yes, it's capped at 12 and I think including 
the Eileen Trust person there are 10 bodies." "So 10 bodies, so it's not the 
actually the amount of posts you have got to fill, it's actually the number of bodies, so 
if you half each doing part time, that would take it up, whereas you could have say 12 
full time staff?" JB: "Yes.". I:C: "So they don't do it on a full time cover?" JB: 
"No." LC: "That's crazy."[G i "Is that not something you can challenge?" JB: "I 
think that's been the case that it's been challenged before and when Caxton was 
introduced additional staff were allowed at that point and I think that was when the 
cap of 12 came in."G + "Wouldn't it be better from your point of view then not to 
take on part time staff, but literally to employ full time staff and then you would have 
a higher number?" AL: "But most of them are full time, but they're split between the 
organisations." JB: "But it wouldn't make sense to have, there's only so many ways 
you can do it and there are efficiencies to sort of the knowledge and everything that 
people have so we wouldn't get very far. The majority of people are full time to be 
fair, I think we have the finance assistant who is part time, and the person who works 
for the Eileen Trust is part time, I think everyone else is full time, so it wouldn't really 
make an awful lot of difference." "It sounds like there's `spare capacity of 
staffing' when they're struggling, it doesn't make sense not to be using that." LC: 
"When we spoke a while ago, you bad some vacancies, are they all full now?" JB: 
"Yes." !oRo•A! "Would it not make sense to have dedicated staff at the Caxton 
Foundation, that way when we phone up, we know exactly who to ask for, who to 
speak to and who deals with what." JB: "Well there is one dedicated member of staff 
across 3 '/z people, that means that 2 '/z people's time is split doing all the other 
functions, we just don't have the funding at the moment to be able to do that." LRJ 
"How many quotas are Caxton were allowed?" JB: "it's never been set down in that 
way but the understanding is that those other posts would be split across the other 4 
organisations as well." [?!9:±i "So basically, the Caxton beneficiaries have got one 
named person to speak to if they want to speak to somebody." JB: "Pretty much, but 
so does everyone else, it's the same for MFT, much the same for Skipton, the same 
for Eileen Trust, MFET." LC: "Is it sort of the officey functions are often shared so 
finance, admin those sorts of things and there is speciality bits of knowing the trust is 
the bit that has one person, is that how it's split?" JB: "Yes, pretty much." GW: 
"This is an issue that we've raised several times with our MPs and the APPG, but 
what do the Department of Health say when you raise this with them, about this cap? 
Do they give you a reason why they put a cap on you?" AL: "They haven't given a 
reason, that was the cap that was set and we were very mindful of the fact that we 
have to balance the proportion of our resources that we spend on staff, we've been 
very concerned that actually, it might be too much spent on staff, so we have tried to 
ensure that we have stayed within our cap, but the department is aware that there have 
been performance issues which fortunately, are becoming much better, much much 
better, and when we have our review (and we haven't got a date for that yet) we shall 
be raising this again, because we are also seeing an increase in the number of potential 
beneficiaries that we are receiving enquiries from so that would form part of the 
evidence that we will provide to them." JB: "I think the only thing to say at the 
moment, there is no indication the department would be giving us any more money, 
so any more that we spent on staffing, would effectively be taken off the budget for 
charitable grants and stuff." LC: "Do you have 'one pot' if you like, so when you 
receive the money, this is what you've got for the year; staffing and grants, and it is 
one pot, it's not split?" JB: "Well it kind of is split in terms of we have to be specific 
about the staffing costs and that's kind of separated out." IGRo. ] " This is one of the 
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deteriorations in the way that the department have treated the trusts over the years 
because at 'once upon a time' Macfarlane Trust used to get that recognised and 
separated out so that their admin costs were paid separately to the amount they 
received in grants, in the end they managed to roll into one and told them they've got 
to make savings even though they were telling everybody else "oh there's no reason 
why the trust can't be more supportive." LC: "is there anything you think we could 
do in terns of support for the fact that actually it takes quality staff to run a trust well, 
so is there anything so the APPG could be the secretariat and as the society we could 
separately write to the Department of Health, is there anything we could do that you 
think would be useful and helpful wont do any harm?" JB: "I don't think it's about 
quality staff." LC: "No, no, no what I'm saying is that to be able to have good 
quality staff you need to employ them you need to fund them you cant just pick 
someone off the streets."iaRo AJ "Without being over exuberant do you have an idea of 
what you'd really like in place if you didn't have to work to account and all that, to 
run it efficiently." LC: "Without being stretched." JB: "Not off the top of my head, 
but definitely more than we have now but it comes back to the issue of funding that 
potentially any money more that we spend on staffing would be money taken out of 
the charitable pot and I've never heard any support for doing that." LC: "If we were 
able to explicitly write and say this should not reduce the amount of money that is 
paid (I know they might not listen) but actually the more people who say what your 
doing is wrong you need to rethink it the stronger it is and we could certainly do that 
and I can talk to the APPG about actually maybe some of the problems, people 
experiences, that staff arc pushed, there isn't enough time for them to necessarily 
work in the way that they'd want to, if that would be helpful I don't see an reason 
why we shouldn't do that. "JB well maybe we should think about all that." LG. i "If 
you're pushing and we're pushing then why shouldn't we push to get the admin costs 
separated back out again?" LC: "Exactly.'GRo.Aj;'It would make far more sense. 

iGRo,al"Can I ask what the budget is for this year?" AL: "What for staff?" ino.n"For 
both." AL: "Oh, for both." JB: "The total of £2.38 and I'm afraid off the top of my 
head I can't tell you what the admin budget is for staffing, it's about two hundred 
thousand?" GW: "2.38 for Caxton specifically?" JB: "Yes, 2.38 total allocation." 

ORo.Aj. "And how much has been spent have you any idea? AL: "Yeah, hang on." JB: 
"Yeah we do but I haven't got those figures with me." 1 ORoa► "Well I'll get onto Andy 
Burnham on that one anyway." LC: "So Jan if maybe we liaise about and then you 
as a group liaise about actually what is it we think would be a reasonable ask, that 
might be useful for you and for the beneficiaries to receive what they think would be 
right and come somewhere in the middle. Would that be ok?" GW: "We've got to 
be careful about what we ask them for; really what we want is for Caxton to be shut 
down." AL: "Yes we know that." LC: "Well there's something about while full and 
final compensation is negotiated and agreed there needs to be support in the 
meantime." IGRO,A "Yeah, but that's providing the support is being given and it's not 
being given. " GW: "We had a similar conversation at the last PG meeting about the 
way forward and asking for these on-going payments for people who are below the 
poverty line, I think I__ GRO -A  mentioned the point that really we don't want to be 
going down that road because really we want rid of this failing organisation, this 
government quango, so to some extent we've got to be careful about what we ask for. 
By the sounds of it this business case has been put forward to thDepartment of 
Health and it's been thrown back in our faces so what is the point?" '?~ A "Could we 
have a copy of that business plan?' GRo_n;"Yeah, have you got Department of Health 
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clearance now? Can I ask why you needed Department of Health clearance?" AL: 
"Because you always have to have clearance if there is a business case that the 
Department of Health is considering at any time, it remains confidential at that time 
until they've made a decision"LG. J "Ok, but after they've made the decision you're 
not beholden to them to..." AL: "No, but it is courteous to tell them." [0RPA"Could l.-.--.-J 
you send me a copy?" AL: "Of course." GW: "Have you got specific reasoning 
from the Department of Health as to why they've refused it?" AL: "I can read it to 
you if you wish." [ j  "Have you considered circulating the business case to Alistair 
Burt and the APPG with that information that it was turned down to so that they 
understand what you're asking for?" Al..: "That is part of our submission." JB: 
"But in terms of Alistair Burt, his work is about a final settlement, it isn't about the 
funding that we get out of them."LRo.A "Yes, but he's also building a case as to why, 
what we've got at the moment isn't adequate and it isn't working so it would help." 
LC: "He's working with the APPG so on the two arms this isn't good enough which 
is why you need to do something about it. t°1o► "And also I know the Shadow 
Secretary of State For Health is important." AL: "Would you like me to read it 
through? `Ministers have decided that this is not the right time for an uplift in 
allocation whilst they continue to consider how best to address the range of issues 
about the system of support available for those affected by contaminated blood many 
of which were highlighted during the Westminster hall debate on the 20 October.' 
Then it says 'we haven't been able to confirm our allocation yet at the moment 1 
recognise that the decision not to increase funding will be disappointing news for the 
Foundation'. LC: "I wrote to the Department of Health team as well to say could 
you explain why you would say no and I got basically the same response, 'the 
Minister felt it wasn't the time', so I went back and said 'is that because your looking 
at full and final compensation' they said 'we can't comment' iGRo-A "Anna Soubry said 
in one of the meetings we had that she didn't see any reason why we couldn't be 
making adjustments to the scheme at the moment to help it until such time as that 
process was complete. AL: "Well, that's our position." 

Winter Fuel Payment 

Ann Lloyd asked Jan Barlow to make a statement on the winter fuel payment. JB: 
"Just to let people know and confirm that the board has agreed to make a winter fuel 
payment against the same level as last year and as last year it will be getting paid in 
November. We had a lot of positive feedback about paying it that early compared 
with the previous two years when it hadn't gone out til about March so we're 
planning to keep to that timetable."[oRo-Ai "Can I ask, if you're going to review the 
decision not to uplift in line with inflation, what happened on that review?" JB: "I 
think we are aware that the payment we make is considerably higher than the one the 
Government makes so kind of in excess of that Government one, so I think the board 
decided that in the light of the other funding priorities this year that it needed to be 
kept at the same level." AL: "But this is an issue that's reviewed every year." E n 
"I was gonna say, it did go to review though because that was mentioned at the last 
PG meeting." AL: "We had some very long discussion about winter fuel payments. 
GW: "There was an issue about previous winter fuel payments if you remember 
regarding people having to fill in census forms." JB: "That wasn't done last year and 
it won't be done again this year." GW: "So there's no conditions attached to that 
now?" JB: "People have to be registered with us and they have to have done Part A 
because that's effectively our detailed registration but we didn't ask people to fill in 
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part two last year like we had done the year before, so we will just continue that 
practise going into winter fuel payments. They only thing we will be doing this year 
is, because it's been a while, we will be asking people to re-confirm their bank details, 
that's the only thing we will be doing." o "Is that your annual census form that 
you do with the winter fuel payment at the same time?" JB:"We don't do an annual 
census in the way that the Macfarlane Trust does."IjR j"You don't, so that essentially 
is your census as such, just to confirm that people are still alive and with you?" JB: 
"When Caxton started before I joined, when people registered they had to effectively 
fill in Part 1 and Part 2, but what you'd recognise as the MFT Annual Census, even if 
they weren't going to apply for Grants or anything else, we decided that until people 
needed to. you know, wanted more from us, if you like, that all we needed was the 
basic information about them and we didn't want to make people fill in that Part 2, so 
we moved away from doing that, but just for financial reasons and audit reasons we 
need to just reconfirm people's bank information before that payment is made."joRoi.
"Is there a requirement for you just to confirm that people are, sort of, effectively still 
on the book annually, or?" JB: "Well we need to know that if we are effectively 
paying something into someone's bank account, that that bank account is still valid, 
that someone is still the owner of that bank account, so we just have to do that for 
audit purposes.' olio. JJ "My bank account details aren't registered with the Caxton, I 
asked to be paid by cheque, so I'm not officially on your census." AL: "Well as long 
as they've got those details.. ."GRo,Ai "Oh, they have; they've got my husband's details 
and his bank account " Ran."So you don't have to confirm that you're still with us..." 

`GRo.* "I think they know that." JB: "But also we make those winter fuel payments to 
primary beneficiaries and widows so the winter fuel payment wouldn't be made to 
GRO-A;directly as a carer, it would be made to her husbands jGRO-Al But he doesn't 
have to confirm anything either way if he's paid by cheque?" `GRo,Ai"No, I'm paid by 
cheque, it goes into his bank account, I won't give them my bank account details." 
oR "So, just with my MFT hat on for second, I was just wondering, I was just trying 
to understand the legal side, because we're told with MFT that you have to fill it in, 
it's a legal requirement." JB: "But its not for MFT that you do it GRO-A it's for 
MFET, and people who are in receipt of Skipton stage 2; you have to do it for Skipton 
as well, its done in about March if I remember correctly; every March time, people 
have to confirm their bank details are still valid, it's just a one sheet of paper people 
get." [! J "But the MFET thing, we have quite a simple thing don't we that we just 
have to sign and send back, but there's the larger census that's usually kind of slanted 
as if it's MFT." JB: "The bigger census is MFT but the confirmation of bank details 
is MFET and Caxton for the winter fuel payment, it would be similar to the 
MFET/Skipton stage 2 bank forms."  "Ok, so actually, legally there is no need of 
almost for that MFT larger census is there?" JB: "There is because the discretionary 
payments are based on it." iGR +r `Because of the 'top up' payment?" JB: "Yes.", GRG.A! 

"Ok, I understand the distinction." IGR0.Al"My husband doesn't get a 'top up". AL: 
"Are there any other matters arising?" 

GW: "Just a couple of things, Caxton numbers there is a figure approaching 800 
previously do you have any idea of what it is now and whether it is expected to 
increase?" AL: "it is increasing, Jan have you got the latest?" JB: "It is constantly 
increasing but I'm afraid I don't have them stats with me." AL: "We'll put those in 
the, we'll email everybody." aRo-wi "Can you write to me as I'm not on email?" AL: 
"That's fine." GW: `Because originally there was expected to be about 3,000 
applicants come forward." AL: "Well, 1500 we thought." GW: "Was it 1500?" AL: 
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"1500 yes." GW: "I don't assume its anything like that, probably 8 or 900ish?" JB: 
"It's not as many as 900 at the moment, but it went up by about 150 last year." GW: 
"Really?" JB: "Yes." GW: "Were those predominantly, would you know off the top 
of your head whether they were predominantly haemophiliacs or people without a 
bleeding disorder?" JB: "I wouldn't be able to tell you off the top of my head, no." 
AL: "But at least, you know, more people are coming forward which is what we 
wanted." LC: "And is that people are finding out that you exist do you think, is that 
mainly what it is?" JB: "Yeah, and everyone has to have had a Skipton payment 
before they can register with Caxton, so there's a piece of process that Skipton always 
does and I know that they have had a constant stream of people still coming through, 
so it's probably as a result of the information that people get through that., but people 
also just randomly find out, but its basically as a result of Skipton." 

LGRO-AJ"I was going to ask about the numbers, your numbers are they just beneficiaries 
or are they a mixture of family?" oRo.A "Are they only just primary beneficiaries, 
carers, children." JB: "The people that are registered are primary beneficiaries and 
widows. Children effectively come through the family one way or another because 
they're dependants and on the whole most carer's come through that route as well." 
[oo "Well I'm sorry, but that's wrong. Carers should be considered on an individual 
basis, I am an individual, I am not my husband and I wish to be considered as an 
individual with myry income,separate from my husband." JB: "But not everyone takes 
your views GRO-A ; 1GRO.AJ But, can I then be treated as an individual, not ... AL: 
<a  : ~c 

1t IeRo,Aj Iv " 
T not." You are, you are."  JB. But you are treated as an individual. o, I m 

JB: "In what sense?" `GRG A "Because you've just said I have to come through my 
husband." JB: "No, what I am saying is, I said on the whole, carers (children 
definitely come through their parents). IGRo.A; "Obviously, yes." JB: "And on the 
whole, carers choose to come through their partners, if they don't we have a small 
number of carers registered separately." [oRo,n "Well how do I know whether I'm 
registered via my husband or whether I'm registered separately? I didn't know 
anything about this until todays." JB: "Well now you do know. It doesn't affect your 

)" L ,a 
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access to grants does it'. LGR9 .A••_,__•_; Well, it can do "  "But But it doesn ' t "  . 1oRo.Ai Well, I 
can't put in a grant because the only grant I need to put in for is basically if I want, 
say a couple of pamper days, if I get time, or a holiday. Now, this year, I can't put in 
for a holiday because my husband's waiting to go into hospital so I don't know when 
I will be able to go, so therefore I can't send you 2 estimates and because I don't 
know where I'll be going, when I'll be going, so therefore I can't claim. I can't put in 
for a pamper day because I might be able to go, say next Thursday, it will take me 6/8 
weeks to get the funding to go for it, I can't do it, so what's the point? The Caxton 
does not work for a haemophiliac's carer." GW: That's true I'm afraid and I'll tell 
you why. Because if an individual, and you know that I'm in this situation where I 
have refused to jump through all your hoops, that then immediately cuts out my entire 
family; it cuts out my wife, cuts out my son and it cuts out my daughter, but on 
principle I won't do it, I won't jump through your hoops and that cuts them out totally 
and I think that is so wrong. So if somebody is in my position where they just flatly 
refuse to do it, and there might be some other people who just can't, because I know 
there's people who can't bring themselves to actually go through this monstrous 
process, they just mentally can't do it, that again immediately cuts out all their family 
members, and its wrong." [G Ro,A] "But for me as a carer of a haemophiliac, the Caxton, 
your set up is not appropriate, it is too time consuming and by the time I've jumped 
through the hoops, I might not be able to do what I wanted to do like last year when I 
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applied for a holiday. It took that long I couldn't go on the holiday I wanted because 
it was no longer available so I ended up having to settle for second best. Is that right 
that I have to do that? And I'm just one carer, the other carer's I have spoken to have 
all said the same. We are not considered." AL: "Then I think we need to clarify the 
situation relating to carers and advise them accordingly." iGRG-Aj "But it's also your 
claims process, you have to put in your claim 2 weeks before the committee meets, 
you then wait for the committee to meet, you then get a response within another week 
(which is 3 weeks), you then, in my case last year, I got a form to fill in to say that I 
would use the money for what I'd intended it to be used for, I had to then send that 
back, which took another few days. By the time I'd get the cheque, it would be 6 
weeks from sending it in (that's if it was agreed) to receiving the money. People 
haven't got that time to waste Ann. If I put in for a claim, I need to know that within 
a week somebody in that office can say 'yes or no' and send a cheque out. Because of 
my husband's illness." AL: "We understand that." L ni "Yeah, but it's not just me 
it's happened to, it's other people. The Caxton isn't working. How many times do 
we have to tell you? You need to change your process because it is not working for 
the beneficiaries and I have got permission from this lady to bring these letters. She 
applied for grants; she is a 79 year old widow who had a ten hour operation to have a 
colostomy bag fitted, she applied for a grant in May for a walker (a walking aid), to 
have a fan fitted in a shower because she can't bathe, and the fan broke, and obviously 
she couldn't use the shower without the fan (it still hasn't been paid); for help with 
her MOT that she got last year; none of it as to now, has been settled and I have her 
permission to show you these, or to give them to you (you can keep these I've got 
copies) and it still hasn't been settled; its not going to the committee til August 
because some of them are retrospective, and I think, when you read that. Also, she 
sent in all the receipts, everything thatwas required with her application letter: you've 
lost them." JB: "Allegedly" [GRo,Al "Now you're asking a ... allegedly.... are you 
calling this lady a liar? JB: "No, but..." iGRo-A; "But they all went with the letter." AL: 
"Can we deal with this outside this meeting please? It's an important issue." GR .'j "It 
is an important issue." GRa! "It is an issue, what it does reflect though is that there's 
not an appreciation for what it's like to be in that situation and we do need that 
reflecting better." GRo-Aj. "But I mean, every time, my husband applied for a holiday in 
January, we paid for it because it was the holiday he saw that he needed. He'd lost his 
father, he'd had operations, he was waiting to go back in hospital, he really had a bad 
six months and because we saw the holiday that we wanted and because of our 
previous experience he paid for it and then we applied to the Caxton and we were told 
because it was retrospective he couldn't have it; we appealed and we were told 
exactly the same. Now, because of the experience I've had with mine, that was why 
he did it and when we wrote the appeal letter that's what we put in it and it was still 
rejected. It is not working, it's not working for me, it's not working for my husband 
and other beneficiaries it's not working to. Everybody you speak to, you say the 
Caxton foundation; oh I don't really want to go to them, I don't want to beg and I 
don't want to..." AL: "Yes, you've said that before." [GRGAJ "But it's still going on 
and after nearly three years. Why is it going on? Why are we being made to feel the 
way we're feeling?" GW: "And this lady's example is nothing unusual, it's been 
going on since the very beginning." GRo-A "I mean I've given copies of that letter to 
my MP and he has read them" GW: "One way around it might be to simply make the 
widows and the carers primary beneficiaries, do you have the power to do that?" JB: 
"No we don't." AL: "No, I'm afraid we don't." GW: "It's not what it says here in 
the Caxton Trust deed; I'll read it to you, it says 'The Trust deed shall have the power 
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with the consent of the founder to add individuals to the class of primary beneficiary 
and to alter the definition of the excluded persons' JB: "But what it means is to add 
people to the definition is about who is registered as a primary beneficiary." GW: 
"Well register the widows and carers as primary beneficiaries." JB: "The primary 
beneficiary is those who have been infected." GW: "Yes but what I'm saying is that 
this trust deed......" AL: "We cannot alter the law I'm afraid Glenn." GW: "I'm 
not asking you to alter the law, it says here in your own Trust deed on your website 
that you have the power at page 3 item 5.3; to add to the list of primary beneficiaries. 
'The trustees shall have the power with the consent of the founder (I assume that's the 
department of health) to add individuals to the class of primary beneficiary 
therefore..... " LGRO-AI "That's down to how you read it in the definition." GW: "It 
seems pretty clear to me...." AL: "Let's just cut this conversation because there are 
important things getting lost. We will certainly provide you with the legal advice on 
that one and as forrGRO_As concerns, they're very, very important and I'm going to 
ask the NWC to assess her concerns about, 1 know we've speeded up the way we 
manage our requests for help and assistance but nevertheless they are already looking 
at the office guidelines with a view to increasing them, because they go through them 
at this time, and to come back to you about that. 

`oRan "Is there progress on this intention to have printed office guidelines that 
everybody can look at and know clearly what they are entitled to or?" JB: "But there 
was never, I don't think there was ever any agreement to do that, we talked about that 
previously." GRo•Aj "In the previous PG there was." JB: "Not to, I think if we look 
back at the minutes it was about, we talked about those limits and it was that the limits 
were just for office guidelines so they are not the limits are what can be approved by 
the staff and which have been agreed by the board and if people want more than the 
office guidelines limits, people can go through the committee to apply for that. So the 
limits would kind of give a-false impression of what's available so we never discussed 
an agreement to do that GRo-A'. GW: "I think we as a Partnership Group are saying 
that those office guidelines must be put on the website because people need to be 
aware, they need to be very clear as to exactly what they can claim for and the 
amounts they can claim for. I understand this is being done for the MFT. Can you 
confirm that GRo-4 JB: "No it hasn't."!GRG-A, "they did in the past and they have taken 
it away, likewise I think they are looking at reintroducing it or, (they are always 
looking to reintroduce it but)." !GRaA "But to be honest I don't know what I could 
claim for and neither does my husband." LC: "I was just going to ask you that, we 
often get calls from people saying 'I don't know what I can apply for and what I can't. 
It maybe on the website, but it would be helpful if there were maybe really clear 
guidelines of who can apply for what, whether you've updated them." AL: 
"Certainly the annual report was clear about the sort of grants..." I.C: "Just like a 
'fact sheet', almost a fact sheet of, this is who can apply; this is how you do it, how 
long it will take..." "And if there's something that's linked to means testing, or 
there's..." AL: "but certainly the website is being revised anyway so it needs to be 
clear." IGRG-A "But you would have a paper copy for instance if someone was the ring 
the office and within that you can state (as Jan was explaining) that the limits or the 
amounts available may vary depending on circumstances or means testing whatever, 
but people would understand it then if that was just stated." JB: "But the office 
guidelines, there are things that for example aren't in office guidelines which can still 
be considered by the committee." GW: "But that could be made clear on the website, 
people could understand that if the details were put there. Can you confirm that the 
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office do have a set of guidelines which list specific items be it washing machines, 
beds, decorating, house moves etc etc, they have a list of specific items and the 
amounts against those items. "Do you confirm that?" JB: "Yes". GW: "so all you 
have to do is simply put that list on the Caxton Foundation website, its simple and it 
could be done tomorrow." LC: "The other thing I wonder if it would be helpful if 
you could do, is to have something about how decisions are made? So like a 
`decision making flow chart'. There may be something (and I don't know), but it's 
the sort of thing that we get asked actually, you know, how do you make decisions 
and my answer is "I don't know." But I think that sort of flow chart would be really 
helpful." AL: "At the last meeting, Rachel said that you were getting a number of 
questions and you would like to publish some fact but she didn't get back to us." LC: 
I think that's because she was an interim." AL: "I understand that, so it would be 
really helpful if you could liaise with Jan about what would be useful information to 
go on your website as 'you get these queries'." LC: "It is frequently asked questions 
of things, and 'what you can apply for?' 'who can apply?' 'how long it takes?' 'if you 
can give guidance on the sorts of amounts and where it's flexible and were it's not' 
,can you repeat applications?', those sorts of things, just so people are really clear I 
think would be really helpful." [ o.; "Like for instance with the treatment payments 
that are available, is it the same whether it's the first time you have treatment, second, 
third, fourth whatever, what sort of things do you need to provide?". AL: "Fine, 
because we do need to speed up the process although we know that the process is 
getting quicker but nevertheless I do want absolute clarity so that people can 
access..." ~GRO-Ai"Who set these office guidelines up in the first place?" AL: "I 
should think the NWC did that, that was prehistory." CL: "They started off, I think 
we took the office guidelines the Macfarlane Trust used and adapted them."-! ] "I 
find it absolutely pathetic in a way that it's not unreasonable for somebody to come to 
you and ask for a washing machine for example £250, which is not a lot of money for 
a washing machine and yet there are people who have been given grants for £150 
which I do find insulting." AL: "The NWC is reviewing the office guidelines at the 
moment." `o'! "It is crazy that, you know, we're not talking London prices here, 
we're talking Argos £250 for a bloody good washer. I know you can pay £500!£600 
for a Bosch, or whatever you want to do, but to be insulted by getting a cheque for 
£150, I do wonder like the rest of us 'what was the Caxton set up to do?' !GRO-A':, 
"Exactly". iGRO ! "That is absolutely crazy". AL said "they are reviewing them, we've 
asked them to review this so they will come back to us with their recommendation." 
,t asked "Is there a point at which your income, and it occurs to you that people 
should be able to afford all of these things, then I think people would need to know 
that as well, that would be useful." AL: "I don't think we make that sort of 
judgement actually."LCRo.n "So you don't make that judgement?" AL: "No, not as a 
board, certainly not.r GW: "There is some minutes on the Caxton website that list a 
figure of £14,000." IGRO•A"So they think you can manage if you've got that sort of 
income? CL: "Just to say, that was very early days when we were not sure how many 
beneficiaries were going to come forward and there was a question of whether we 
needed to give preference to people on lower incomes and if we were going to have 
that kind of cut off around lower incomes, what that should be and we decided to take 
the 60% of medium income definition of poverty, but in actual fact, we never really 
used that £14,000".L RO-A "You were look at a redefinition of the disabled poverty line 
as well." CL: "Well exactly, because the 60% doesn't take account of illness or 
disability. AL: "That's right."!GRo- "Has that happened since, or are you about to tell 
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us something on that?" AL:" Anything more on matters arising? Can we go onto the 
regular payments system please?" 

Regular payments system 

AL: "Subsequent to the department of health stating that they couldn't provide us 
with the resources to actually undertake the scheme that we'd asked for and the board 
discussed this at great detail because they were very concerned that the information 
arising through the NWC was indicating that a number of the beneficiaries were really 
struggling and consequently they thought that a regular payments system which is 
reviewable should be put into place. We considered a paper looking at actually who 
did we think was going to benefit from this, and it obviously had to be those on the 
lowest income where their income and expenditure was understood and that we would 
as far as possible, start to institute a regular payment system. We were very 
concerned that the level at which we might be able to support people would be much 
lower then we actually wished to in the first place, but in looking at the resource 
available and 1 still am convinced given the number of people we think this might 
benefit, that we are going to be heading for a fair overspend at the end of the day 
which will cause big problems and we've got to discuss with the Department what 
happens in that case but nevertheless, we are still in principle wishing to establish a 
regular payment system which is reviewable. We have been very mindful of the 
dangers of raising expectations if we suddenly find we are utterly inundated and the 
census that we will have to undertake means that we've identified more people than 
we anticipated, but nevertheless, the board is still intent on trying to take a step 
forward to alleviate the financial situation of its most disadvantaged beneficiaries." 

GRO. ! "Could I suggest that if you want to make a regular payment, why don't you start 
with the carers, make them a 'one off payment' yearly so that they can, when they 
can, take a holiday, have a pamper day if you want to, go to the cinema if they want 
to, and the money is already there. You could do that once a year." AL: "A carer's 
payment." JB: "But can I just say, that would be different, if the aim of the regular 
payment system.........." AL: "Nevertheless that is a different issue but we will take 
that up". `!RO.A] "I brought this at the very first meeting last year." AL: "I know you 
did." JB: "But the idea with the regular payment scheme was to help those on the 
lowest incomes and one of the things that had come out of the work with the NWC 
was the fact that so many people had come through the committee asking for support 
on low incomes...." `GRo.Aj "What do you class low income; do you class it on state 
benefit level or do you class it on something else?" JB: "Well there are people that 
we know that are living below the formal definition of poverty line for example; we 
see that kind of, that's what I mean." ! GRO-A; "Yes but is that state benefit or working 

JB: "People who are working are unlikely to be below the poverty line." [ RC.Aj 

"Not necessarily". JB: "Not necessarily but I said `unlikely', the majority of the 
people that we see at that level are those people who can't work who are on benefits, 
maybe on state pensions only or something like that". L'±• "What about if you're on 
state pension and pension credit guarantee, which like income support is a top up." 
JB: "It would depend, what I'm saying to you[GRO-Ai is there are a number of people 
on very, very low incomes..." 'GRO-Aj "I know, and I'm one of them." JB: "And that's 
when all those different things are added together, and some people actually don't 
have that many things that add to that...." [oRo-A' "I understand all that..." JB: "so 
those were the people that we were specifically trying to assist. Now when we made 
the business case to the Department of Health, there is this thing called '60% median 
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income' which is basically 60% of what the average income is, essentially, and that is 
the definition of the poverty line.' GRo.A "there's a number of different definitions on 
that..." JB: "It changes 'year on year', it's assessed by the Government's statisticians 
each year but that figure is 'kind of published'. Now, we felt that 60% median 
income which is the poverty line was not something we wanted to aspire to, we 
wanted to aspire to getting people above that and so we did various models to look at 
costs and when we put the business case to the Department, we put the business case 
on the back of 80% median incomes so that was lifting people above that poverty line 
and that would have cost us an extra £3 1/2 million pounds and that is what the 
Department of Health didn't want to give us essentially." e n "So it's an extra £3.5 
million per annum?" JB: "yes, that's what that 80% median income level would have 
been and what we'd wanted to do at that stage was to make people up to that level so 
if the 80% median income for a single person was £11,000 for example, if you were 
only on £6,000, we'd look to make up the difference between £6,000 and £11,000 and 
that is what in total based on the modelling that we could do would have cost us 3 'h" 
and that's what the Department threw out." oRo.A "Is this treating an individual as an 
individual's income or are you talking about household?" JB: "It's household 
income, but it depends on the household composition so these 60% and 80% median 
income levels change according to whether you're single, whether you have a partner, 
whether you have children..." LC: "Just like a standard definition that is used?" JB: 
"Obviously the greater the number of people in the household, the higher the level 
because if there is one of you, or if there is two of you, you need more to live on than 
if there is one of you. So that was what the department didn't want to fund, but as 
Ann said, the board was still very keen to try and assist those people that we knew 
were living on those low incomes but because the department didn't want to give us 
that extra money, we were basically left this year with a situation where any system 
we could implement had to come in around the £800,000 mark, so that is a quarter, 
less than a quarter, of what we would have needed to run that system that we were 
hoping to do so what we've looked at, at the moment is having to go back to the 60% 
line so that's effectively the poverty line (and there are still plenty of people living 
below that), but again because we don't have all the money we wanted, we won't be 
in a position to make people up to that, all we will be able to do is make some 
additional payment to those households that have fallen below that level; we won't be 
able to make it up. At the moment, we don't know exactly what kind of payment 
we're gonna be able to make so the next steps is that at the end of August/the 
beginning of September, we are going to be writing to everyone setting out what we 
are hoping to do and setting out what those 60% median income levels are for those 
different households so people know what the income levels are and then asking 
people who want to be considered and who believe that they would fall into that 
income bracket to complete a census so that we can then model how many people 
we've actually got and then work out what level of payment we can afford to make 
from that £800,000 that we've got available. So it's significantly less than we would 
have been able to do if the Department had supported our business case but as Ann 
said, the board's very keen to do something because we are so mindful that there an 
awful lot of people living on very low incomes and at the current time, that is the best 
that we can do to help those people and obviously if we were to move up the level of 
income that are trying to assist the greater the number of people that would qualify 
and therefore the amount that we could give them would go down, so we are having 
to do this very much based on absolute income and real financial hardship so it's not 
going to be a scheme that benefits everyone because we are really trying to target 
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those people who are really struggling financially." lc : a "Obviously it's a bit 
disappointing it's not going to be able to achieve what everybody wants, but I do 
think it's important that you've kept yourselves mindful of it and you're going to 
introduce something, even if it takes you to an overspend because that will test the 
Department's so called commitment where they keep saying `you've never spent up 
and therefore they've never needed to consider you needed more money'.." AL: 
"Well yeah, an uplift thank goodness, but nevertheless we're just trying to be very, we 
were trying to protect the grants schemes so that even if you get a regular payment, it 
doesn't preclude that; we were trying to protect other benefits and payments that we 
make; we could try to keep the staff costs down because this is coming from the 
general allocation to try our very best with a margin of risk (big margin of risk) to 
make this as satisfactory a scheme as is possible. "I do think it's important to be 
seen (it might be risky), but it is important to be seen to be using all of your 
resources." AL & JB: "Absolutely." GW: "because you haven't been in previous 
years have you? You haven't used all your resources that you've had." AL: "Well 
we haven't been able to locate sufficient, you know if you've got a level of, of...we 
think that, well we believe, when we've asked the Department, that they, they've 
made a guestimate of how many people might come forward and despite your 
publicity and ours, we've never been able to reach that level which has been of 
concern to us, which is why we've had to rethink how do we use the resource that's 
available, absolutely get it on the nail, and I have to say I think it will probably go 
up". GW: "From those costings you would have included the income of the carer, or 
the wife or the partner?" JB: "Yes, because it's household income." AL.: "That's 
how it is." GW: "We have a big problem with that you see because basically what 
you've got then (I appreciate your situation) but what you've got then is a situation 
where the carer or the wife, or the husband (if it's the lady that's infected) is actually 
subsidising the ill-health potentially of the infected primary beneficiary, 1 find that 
shocking that the wive's and partners and husbands etc, have to basically 'bale out' 
the Department of Health." JB: "That's kind of a separate issue really isn't it, that's 
kind of part of your bigger arguments with the Department of Health." GW: "It sort 
of ties in with your using it within your modelling." AL: "We did discuss all of that, I 
mean this has taken a long time to think through because, you know, we'd started out 
trying to be absolutely as generous and reasonable as possible but we think that, you 
know, let us do the census and let us recast generously." GW: "I think this just shows 
what our health, this is what we've been up against for an awful long time." JB: "I 
think just sort of coming back to this Glenn, one of the things we also really wanted to 
do was whatever kind of income benchmark we set, it had to be something that wasn't 
kind of made up and it had to be something that was kind of, if you like, 
nationally/internationally recognised so that there was some justification for where we 
have drawn that line and sort of based on some other experiences elsewhere, using 
this kind of model whether people have kind of views about household composition 
and everything else, it is a genuine external ratified benchmark that we can use and so 
that's why we were really keen to do that as I said you know, we wanted to go beyond 
that and was actually aspiring to get people up to the poverty line is not the kind of 
aspiration that we want more than that, but our hands were tied financially as I said, 
what we've got to play with is less than 25% of what we needed to do the system we 
wanted. But I think once we've done the census and we've got all that information 
about people's incomes, it will actually give us some extra information to possibly go 
back to the Department of Health with an embellished business case next year, say ok, 
we still need this £3.5 million, now can we have it please? So it may be that certain 
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things will change, we don't know what's going to happen in terms of final 
settlement, it may be that, you know, where the APPG enquiry and the Alistair Burt 
work end up, is that the charities need more money (I know that's not your ideal 
outcome, you want us gone). but if there were more pressure/evidence put on the table 
which a settlement for the whole community might entail, then this might be 
something they would settle for doing and so we'd be able to revisit this, so I think it 
kind of takes us a bit further forward, its not where we want it to be, but at least we 
are still in a position to try and help those who are in greatest need. [oRo.A; "Coming 
back to carers, I could go out to work but my husband's circumstances won't allow it, 
I could be earning a living, I could have been for years, instead I have to get £61.35 
per week, out of which I've got to clothe myself, anything I need if I want a night out, 
you try going out (I mean I had my nails done a couple of weeks ago, that was a gift) I 
have to rely on friends, I can't afford it on my income. I have to put into the 
household on £61.00 a week, what am I left with? I can't come to the Caxton because 
by the time I've come to the Caxton, I can't give you the estimates you want, I can't 
give you the information you want, so we're back again to the same thing, but then 
again, you are going to take my £61.00 a week back into consideration with my 
husband's pension. I'm disregarded again, I'm not an individual." CL: "Just bear in 
mind, when you're looking at the sort of figure we are working to on the policy 
figure, it increases if there's two people in the household, or if there's two people in 
the household with children, so it does reflect that."oRo-Al"I do understand that, but as 
a carer who is getting £61.00 a week when I should have been making my own way in 
life, and then I have to come and say 'well, I'll wait 6 weeks, 8 weeks while the 
Caxton make their mind up whether or not I can have a pamper day, do you think 
that's right? Because I don't, I can't just say 'oh, I'll go for a meal tonight'. I have to 
save up weeks to go out for one night. I have had one night out this year and that was 
a fortnight ago. How many night's out have you had? And how many night's out 
have you had? I've never been to the Theatre, never, because I can never afford it. 
The last time I went to the pictures was in 1990, because I can't afford it. If I want a 
new pair of shoes, I have to save up for them, I can't afford it. I don't have any debt, 
because I can't afford it, so what is the Caxton going to do for me? What is Caxton 
going to do for people in my position? In three years, they have done nothing; we 
have said this last year at the very first Partnership Group meeting, nothing, nothing 
has been done. It's still exactly the same, what is the point?" AL: "Well I shall be 
reporting this back to the board on Thursday and I will_ ask that the NWC consider 
your suggestion of a 'one off payment for carers'." [oRO-Af "But I suggested this 12 
months ago at the very, very first Partnership Group meeting". AL: "Yes, I know". 
GRaa] "When I was convinced by Mr Lister to reclaim and then I put in for my funeral 
plan and low and behold 'we can't give to carer's because if we give to carer's we 
have to give to everybody else'. My income has been limited as much as my 
husband's, my husband can have a funeral plan because he's stage 2, 1 can't, but 
where am I going to get insurance? Are you going to leave my son to bury me, 
because he can't afford it, I can't afford, and I can't afford to save. So if, if my 
husband dies before me — that's fine, his funeral's paid for, if I die after my husband, 
who pay's for my funeral? My son who can't afford it? Because he can't claim from 
Caxton". JB: "Yes, your son would be able to apply to us for a funeral cost for you." 

Ro_A "Well, can I have that in writing?" JB: "It's on the website." AL: "I think that 
the whole issue of carer's needs discussing, I think that would be extremely helpful." 

;GRO-A!"'But it's not just me that's in this position. AL. No, we know that. 'GRoi1 it s 
all the other carer's." AL: "Yes, I'm not talking about you as an individual; I'm 
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talking about carers, the whole issue of carers." is Ai "It's no good saying 'oh well, 
we'll discuss it on Thursday and 12 months down the line things are still the same. 
We can't carry on like this, we haven't got time, we are looking after people who are 
ill." AL: "Yes, I understand that, ok, thank you." OW: "There's another one actually 
that's just cropped with you saying about the funeral plan GRO_Ay, and that's the 
recent minutes that have been put on the Caxton website and it confirms that the 
funeral plans are only allowed for stage 2 infected beneficiaries, why only stage 2's? 
Why not the stake I's as well?" JB: "Because the..I think it's fair to say that people at 
stage 2......" Ro. "Are more likely _to_die basically". JB: "Well its, I think on the 
whole (I wasn't going to say that GRO_A , but for people at stage 2, tend to be more 
imminently worried about that as an issue, if we, we actually did a calculation about 
how much it would cost for us to provide everyone who was registered with a funeral 
plan, it would be more than our annual allocation, so if we gave everyone a funeral 
plan upfront, a year (well we'd only obviously have to do it once) but if we decided 
that we could do that and once we do it for one person, we couldn't not do it for 
someone else, that would cost more than our annual allocation, so one year's an entire 
funding plus, plus, would be wiped out on funeral plans and one of the principles we 
try to operate by is that we try to do, make our decisions in a way that we could do the 
same for anyone who came forward in a similar situation. So if you, if someone who 
wasn't at stage 2 got a funeral plan, they'd be, we would have no justification for 
turning down everyone else that came forward and that would mean that we couldn't 
do anything else that year and so we have to make those decisions based on what our 
funding is and we could go back to the old argument about, well, we don't like this 
charity, we don't like the way it's funded and everything else, but we have to operate 
within that pot, and that is the reason that there are certain limits put on things 
because if we didn't do that, we might, you know some grant making organisations 
run quarterly grant programmes and if they run out of money at the end of the first 
quarter, they go 'sorry, we've got no more money left'. We would not want to be in 
that situation, we would not want to use up all of our money in the first quarter of the 
year, so we have to put some of those limits in, in order to make sure that we're going 
to be in a position to provide someone who has that same need with the same support 
whether they come to us in May or whether they come to us in January the following 
year." 

iGRO-Aj ̀ How do you assess the impact on your budget if you were to take out a kind of a 
filter along the lines of that what Skipton uses where they use these scientific 
documents that have shown when people should become more imminently concerned 
about their health as they are getting older as well, with relation to liver disease in 
which case it was something along the lines of '25 — 30 years infection' and you can 
really start to get concerned about your health at that point, well that may not apply to 
everyone, but you could use that as a threshold for saying people are entitled to claim 
for a funeral plan." JB: "I suppose the thing is, on the Caxton side, we don't have/do 
those medical assessments so we don't have access to the Skipton data, but we would 
have to kind of revisit when people were infected; as you know, Skipton makes all the 
assessments of the number of tests to assess where and how far people have 
progressed. We are not in a position to do that. [GRO ], "There is information in the 
public domain and that applies across the board to everyone that's registered with 
Caxton, it's a very simple mechanism you could use, and the actual date of infection 
would be very easy to, you could ask for that on the application for the funeral plan." 
o.A] "Yeah, but saying that[? not everybody has a date of the infection." AL: 
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"That's true." l "No, but it's usually accepted (especially within the Haemophilia 
population) that it was the date of your first infusion and for most that's usually 
childhood. JB: "But we would have to then be looking at medical records and 
everything else and we don't have the clinicians to do that, so this is kind of, 
essentially, what I am trying to do is explain the stage, why we've come to that 
decision about funeral plans for stage 2, but that principle about trying to do the same 
for everyone, so that if someone comes to us asking for a specific in May, someone 
coming to us in February is going to get the same answer, that is about actually going, 
'well if we modelled this, what would it cost if we did that for everyone?' And we 
just simply can't and that was the case, but I think it came out at over £3million, 
wasn't it when we look at it and that kind of set up blows all our budget for the year, 
that's not a sensible way to support people because someone who may be is only 35 is 
not going to, you know they're going to have other thinks that they want support on, 
someone who is 50 might have other things they want support on, as opposed to 
blowing all that money in one year on funeral plans."L j "Perhaps this is something 
you can build into your future business plans because you've got a mechanism by 
which you could extend this scheme and still show that you are, you're being mindful 
not to just give it 'wily nily'. JB: "But I think there's also the issue, you know we're 
looking at charitable need as well, and can someone say who's 35 demonstrate that 
they have charitable need for a funeral plan at that point, when we try and explain it, 
some of it gets a little bit over simplified....." AL: "What people need is reassurance 
about what the rules are. Reassurance if this happens, what can I then do? [ G ; " And 
recognition, because funeral plans as we've heard are not available necessarily if 
you've got these kind of life limiting medical conditions so you do need recognition 
that is an issue for people in the infected community." AL: "Yes". JB: "But to be fair 

1 GRO-A if someone came to us who had a diagnosis of something else, occasionally it 
happens where you know, they've effectively been given a certain time to live and it 
might not be stage 2 related, then the committee would look at that as an exception. 
AL: "But I think the community needs to know that." GRO.Al "Could you not stagger 
the funeral plan, say so many stage 2 per year, so many stage I per year, so many 
carer's per year and do it over say 5 or 6 year's rather then all at once?". JB: 
"Although I think given what we are looking at doing with the regular payments 
system I don't think we would have the funding to do that." AL: "Within our 
allocation we certainly can consider it." ;eRo.A "Can we not make a payment upon 
death? You know, you are going to get roughly an idea of the number of deaths from 
stage 2, we don't know about stage 1 because; you know they're dying at a far 
greater, I'm right in saying this aren't I? That stage I's are dying at a far more regular 
than stage 2." GW: "Page 41 of the review shows that stage I's are dying in greater 
numbers than stage 2's for some reason." JB: "But is that in numbers or percentages? 
GW: "What's your experience of the death rate within Caxton?" [ R ;"You don't have 
the complete figures I bet." JB: "No,.. no". AL: "But certainly that's a helpful 
suggestion." `! o J"There is a grant as you know with the Mac Trust am I right? There 
was a payment upon death." JB: "But we would do that as well, so that's what we're 
saying...." AL: "I think we just need to be very clear about what it is we're doing, 
what the rules are, everybody should know and its just that..... 

Communications 

Victoria Prouse (VP): "Firstly, we sent out a survey to primary beneficiaries and 
widows and carers earlier this year, June time, and the idea of the survey was to get an 
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idea from people want forms/types of communications they would be interested in 
receiving from us i.e. newsletters or having meetings and then also to say if we are, 
what is it you want to hear from us? So what's the kind of things you want to find out 
from us, going back to some of the stuff we were discussing earlier to do with what 
information would be useful, so that we're not doing something that people don't 
want to know. So, we've had a brilliant response, we've had about (as the figures 
from yesterday) about 61% of people we wrote to responded which is great, obviously 
responses are still coming in and as they're coming in we are adding the figures to the 
spreadsheet. The two sort of key things, certainly in terms of the types of 
communications that people were interested in, the sort of the overwhelming interest 
was in some kind of newsletter, be that by email or by post, I think there's probably 
very few people who didn't want, express an interest in one or the other of those two 
so that's been a really resounding interest, about 60% coming back who are interested 
in that. We've also had some interest in the website being updated as we've discussed 
previously and keeping information up on the website. I think it's been quite good to 
point out that we've obviously had quite a lot of people who are very keen that we 
didn't just do everything online, that we still have paper versions of things and that we 
still use post where applicable, and they still wanted that contact with Head office and 
the phones, and that side of things." a "Is it clear how many people would go for 
the website side of things that obviously then would have access? Is it clear how 
much percentage of the people responded are interested in the website side of things, 
so you obviously know they've got website access." VP: "Just under 50% actually 
who are interested, and likewise in terms of the newsletter the interest in the 
newsletter we got 60%." JB: "Some people said they'd be interested in either, but 
effectively there was a kind an even split between people who would want it by email 
and people who would want it by post. "At least that shows at least 50% have 
got access to email and so on." VP: "Yes, we do get quite a lot of...." JB: "Well, 
that's 50% of the people that replied obviously, not 50% of the total community, and 
possibly the people that didn't reply, will potentially more likely to be those who are 
more reliant on paper." 

VP: "The other option we gave people was that to having regional meetings, there 
was a much lower response rate from that, about 16% of people across the whole 
community were interested in having regional meetings, around about 90 people in 
total who came back with an interest in regional meetings." AL: "But they'd also 
ticked everything else" VP: "Yes, they'd expressed an interest in some other things, 
so one of their options rather than their only option. In terms of the type of 
information received, we gave people four options which was more information about 
Caxton, the stuff we've talked about the processes and grants available, news from the 
office — that kind of thing, information on new treatments for Hepatitis C, information 
on benefits out there that's available and also some information or signpost 
information about other organisations that might be of interest to people. Pretty much 
across the board there is general interest in all of those areas, out of all of them the 
lowest was the information about new treatments, there was slightly less interest in 
that — possibly because this was a mixture of primary beneficiaries and widows and 
that there wouldn't be an interest in.......Otherwise, a pretty even spread across the 
rest, there was a really strong interest in all three areas and then some of the other 
things we obviously asked people in another box for people to suggest other areas of 
things they would like to hear from. Some of the more popular ones, we had a few 
people asking about stuff more specific to older people rather than sort of the working 
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age, I think particularly that came from the widows. Some information more on 
medical to do with cancer treatment and kidney failures, so other conditions that 
weren't specific to Hepatitis C." ;crec `But other conditions are specific to Hepatitis 
C, it is not just liver cancer." GW: "It's worth remembering that." JB: "No, but I 
think Victoria just meant there wasn't information about Hepatitis C, it was about 
related conditions which weren't Hepatitis C as whereas people are interested in that 
information and new treatments." [ Ro.A! "Yes, but related conditions can be caused by 
Hepatitis C". VP: "So in terms of what we do, obviously this has all happened in the 
last few weeks, we're still getting the results in, they're dribbling in. Most of them 
came in within the time period, but as they come in we are still updating, and 
obviously the board will be discussing this on Thursday when they meet, because they 
haven't had chance to discuss this yet. Obviously we will be updating the website to 
reflect some of this, some of the things that people have asked for, the updates and 
we've got some information we are just preparing to go on the website to reflect some 
of the requests people have asked for. We are also going to be recommending to the 
board on Thursday that we look to apply it to the newsletter as that was the 
overwhelming feedback that we've had from people, and that we will be offering that 
in the post as a hard copy as well an email version and then the board will then 
discuss what we do whether we proceed with regional meetings because it's quite a 
low interest in the first place and the trouble with meetings is that once you then 
arrange a date and time, less people can make it, so once you've got that, it's going to 
be even smaller interest in that possibly for people that can actually attend at a given 
time." 

[GRO-A."Can I make a number of observations; on the communications exercise, a couple 
of criticisms really, you've asked them about their interest in the regional meetings, 
but I think you could have expanded that to ask on their interest in how they wanted 
to be represented further, so are they interested in this kind of Partnership Group 
representation or are they happy for people to be represented by 'your so called 
campaign groups, or representative groups?  I think you've missed an opportunity 
there." AL: "This is the first of many". IGR. .A "The other thing, you didn't include a 
question on feedback. This was all about how they wanted to receive information 
from you; what about them providing information back to you..." JB: "That's 
something that's planned for later in the year, so this was just about information 
coming out from us." AL: "The feedback loop, what I've asked Victoria (as she's 
now taken up her post) to do, is to put whether everything is alright, what were the 
handicaps, so we get a continuous feedback loop which can be fed to the NWC and 
the board, so that's 'in train'." GW: "You could have also expanded into educational 
advice in there, not just meetings; similar to what the MF T had, because I know they 
found it useful. We held a demonstration in David Cameron's constituency earlier 
this year, we stayed over the night before and met with a number of people we've 
never met before and those 2 or 3 hours actually chatting to people who were in the 
same or similar circumstances, was invaluable and people really did appreciate it. if 
there is only 16% of people that would like to do something like that. There will be a 
cost element to Caxton, I do think it would be something worth considering and you 
could expand it into other things, as I said, the educational and advice seminars in 
terms of health related issues, benefits, living with hepatitis C etc, etc, it could be 
really useful." AL:" I think that Glenn, I would agree with you about education and 
advice and I think it was in that context that we suggested such a meeting in the first 
place." JB: "I think the questionnaire did actually ask those things." GW: 
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"Educational and advice? I don't think it did." JB: "T don't think it used exactly those 
words but it talked about, it said an opportunity to meet members of the Board and 
then a number of other things which was about what you've just said." GW: "I don't 
remember that." 1QSRa+ "I don't either." AL: " Anyway, this is round one, we will now 
be going back out to people, not just via the newsletter which we will pilot, but to 
answer GRO _A s questions about representation and to really push the issue of 
education and advice, how do they want to receive it and do they want `this, that and 
the other?' GW: "It's absolutely essential really, because this community are so 
insular, the amount of people we have contacting us, who are desperately private and 
don't want information putting out, so they feel (even sometimes within their own 
families) that they don't have the opportunity to speak with people to express their 
concerns and their worries and their fears, absolutely invaluable opportunity to meet 
with other people who have been through exactly the same things." JB: "What was 
interesting though, which certainly surprised me on the survey responses we got back 
where a lot of people who were very emphatic that the last thing they wanted to do 
was meet with people who are in a similar situation to themselves and that was quite 
interesting and that might reflect actually why the take up of that is so low, because 
people, you know, they kind of don't want it to be a big issue in their lives and they 
just want to get on with it and the last thing they want to do is mix with other people 
who have been infected with Hepatitis C, and I was quite surprised by that." GW: "I 
think that's a relevant point, and I think a lot of people in our community are of that 
mindset, they don't want it to impact on their life in anyway, they want to carry on 
doing the normal things; I was certainly in that position, you shun everything, you 
don't want anything to impact with your employment, with your hopes and ambitions, 
with your relationships, you just want to `bury your head' basically and its not until 
you're put in a position where you can't ignore it any more, that you get to a position 
where it actually controls you and you're not controlling it, and I do think it would be 
useful to have these for those that want to." AL: "I think it's a fundamental 
responsibility really, of ours is to provide a source by which education and advice can 
be provided and there are different ways of doing that, some are very confidential and 
very helpful like some of the helplines that have operated in the past in other 
organisations that have been very heavily used in just such very difficult 
circumstances, so we've got to think of the best way of doing that, that will suit the 
needs of the community." 

•GR" "I think you might even see a split between the type of beneficiary as in the 
haemophilia population versus the none bleeding disorder because bleeding disorders 
tend to take a great interest in their treatment and they would want to know how 
others are getting on with the latest medication that they are trying with Hep C at the 
moment for instance, whereas others tend to 'not have been stung as we were' and 
therefore are still very much guided by their consultant and the NHS advice." JB: "I 
think what's quite interesting is there was a very big interest in hearing about other 
organisations and one of the reasons that we kind of changed the role that we had in 
the office when we appointed Victoria, was to focus on, again coming back to this 
issue of money, you know, we're never going be in a position to employ our own 
benefits advisor, housing advisor's, advisor's on issues relating to older people, those 
kind of things, what we want to do, is to have those links with those other 
organisations so that we can refer people on and interestingly again, some of the 
things that came out of the survey, was a lot of people saying, you know, when they 
ticked the 'other organisations', other information they wanted, was specifically about 
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things like older people, and I know there's been, you know, several people that 
Victoria has already been able to refer onto other organisations as a result of what 
came out of that, so I think over time, its about building up that bigger network so that 
when people have issues which we don't specifically have the `in-house' kind of 
expertise to assist with, we're in a position to at least signpost people on and we have 
that relationship to be able to do that, so that's hopefully going to be, you know that 
would be a really positive development." ;oRo,n"On that issue alone, why don't you 
suggest, rather than 'mini meetings' t~iat you do maybe two weekends for 
beneficiaries to go and meet up, not for any (how shall we put it) meetings where a lot 
of people won't go to meetings, but they might to go to a family weekend. In the 
haemophilia community alone, you have got such a wealth of knowledge on housing, 
benefits, you name it, there's somebody that has been in that position and have 
information that they could pass on. You will find that a lot beneficiaries will talk to 
another beneficiary were they won't talk to you, so if you were to use, say a 
weekend..." "You could either do it through general 'chit chat's' and 
dissemination about that, but you could potentially also have a `breakout' group, 
where people can chose whether to try it or not." [GRo.a] "Exactly, but most people 
would sooner have a weekend like that rather than (how can I put it) official."iaeon? 
"Well, it used to work very well with the Macfarlane Trust when they did those 
things: '  "Yeah, but we've never had that on the Hep C community. " 'eRo J  "But 
again, that's come down to funding and I think one of the issues with the Macfarlane 
one was that they were very, very expensive and only a very tiny proportion of the 
beneficiary community could actually get any benefit from and it was the same people 
attending time and time again.;oRoA "It was actually a little bit to do with that kind of 
overcoming the barriers, I know even from my own prospective it took me many 
years to kind of decide to go and become involved because you're so private about the 
whole thin .' oRo. "Exactly, and you don't realise that people are in the same position 
as you." of o± "Once I'd actually broken the ice and done it, I was like 'why have I 
waited so long' it was actually so positive." AL: "Certainly it's a valuable suggestion, 
thank you and we will look into it, because this will have to go back to the board." 

Partnership Group 

JB: "We were asked by the board to review where we'd got to with the group since 
we'd started around this time last year (you've all had a short paper with the pack). 
As you know we started off with this group largely being made up of members of the 
campaign groups involved. As the beneficiary community has grown in the last year 
as well, we wanted to go back and look at what the makeup of that community was 
because we felt that the Partnership group really needed to be representative of the 
beneficiary community and all the kind of sub-groups that it's made up of, and clearly 
as we've been talking about earlier, we have all the primary beneficiaries but we have 
widows, we also have people who are the dependents and carers of those infected, we 
have a range of people in terms of age group, we have a range in terms of those who 
have haemophilia and those who don't, there's obviously male and female split as 
well, and so when we looked at all of those and bits of information, we decided that a 
year on, now was probably the time to try and get that broader representation on the 
group and so that is why we are wanting to expand it and the numbers that we're 
suggesting are literally to try and reflect in a proportional way, the types of 
beneficiaries that we have, so primary beneficiaries are obviously the predominant 
group, we have male and female, we have people with and without haemophilia. The 
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next highest group is the widows and widowers as well of course, we have male 
members of the bereaved community and specifically carers as well, and in order to 
make the group (if you like) a workable size, looking to need to shrink down the 
number of people who are involved from the campaign groups and I think we omitted 
to put it here, but in terms of the 3 campaign groups, we know that what we are 
proposing would mean that your representation would kind of go down by one from 
each of the groups for this expanded membership, but we would obviously be happy 
for a different person from the campaign groups to come each time, so it would mean 
that if someone wasn't able to come, they would be able to send a deputy so that they 
didn't loose that representation each time, but that's essentially what we are trying to 
do. At the moment, in terms of the other stakeholders; the Chief Executive of the 
Hepatitis C Trust has always been invited, he's unfortunately never been able to 
attend and I know from the earlier discussions, not everyone would welcome someone 
from that group, I think people with Haemophilia had sort of some slightly different 
views from the whole blood ..." ;GR"I"Do you take any views from the Hep C Trust on 
board? How do they represent views?" JB: "We have kind of infrequent contact with 
them, we have kind of more contact at an operational level to be honest than we do at 
board level" AL: "Yes, the helpline manager is usually the person we do contact." 
LC: "Should it be then a representative from the Hep C Trust?" AL: "That's what 
we've asked for." LC: "If there is someone who is helpful who understands the issues 
everybody might face maybe..." GW: "We would welcome somebody from the Hep 
C Trust and I've asked Charles Gore every time now, but he's not been able to make 
it. I contacted him again before this meeting.. .."[off; "But then we only get short 
notice of the meetings. I mean this meeting was supposed to have taken place in May, 
I phoned in April to ask when it was going to be and was told nothing had been 
organised. Then I was told June, then I was told it might be July, then it was August." 
JB: "But coming back to Charles Gore, it hasn't mattered how much notice there's 
been of the meeting, he hasn't been able to attend so we were talking earlier about we 
would encourage him to send a deputy." GW: "1 did ask him that actually." AL: 
"Because his `helpline manager' is really, really useful and has a wide range of 
understanding." IR±"Did he come to the original meeting?" JB: "No, he's never 
come. I think we've always had the Chief Executive or the Interim from the 
Haemophilia Society and we were approached by Haemophilia Scotland to also be 
involved if they could." LC: "Dan's just been made Chief Exec there, I think they 
would be a positive thing for the community." AL: "Yes. is there a similar group in 
Wales do you know?" LC: "No, we cover the whole of the UK still so we cover 
England, Scotland, Northern Island and Wales, but Dan and Haemophilia Scotland are 
specifically looking at issues in Scotland, a lot of it is around campaigning amongst 
other stuff, so we cover the rest of the UK." 

o 

"We also have a Scottish and Welsh 
rep as well (Taintedblood) so we get feedback from them." AL: "In talking to the 
Welsh Minister, he's asked me to see their equivalent of the APPG which is I think 
Chaired by Julie Morgan, Rhodri Morgan's wife whose now got his seat, so I have 
arranged to do that." LGRo.AJ"They've got big problems in Wales." Ail. "Yes, I know." 
JB: "What we are proposing to do now is, obviously there will be some discussion 
now, but the next steps would be to actually to go out to people specifically asking 
them to express an interest. You may remember that we approached the bereaved 
community last year to get a representative to come on we do actually have someone, 
her name is noted in the last minutes,[ GRO_A  i who has agreed to be the 
representative for the bereaved community, so she was unfortunately not able to come 
this time, but we've kind of, you know, we were incrementally starting to do it, but I 
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think we need to, it would be nice to get a male member of the bereaved community 
as well to reflect the people that we support. But to actually now write out to people 
and see who'd be interested and take it from there, -because clearly based on the 
communications survey, not everyone is going to be.' oRo-A "How will I go on because 
as a member of the Manor House Group I was also supposed to be 'for carers'." JB: 
"I think we would need to talk about that and work out what, in terms of the Manor 
House Group, what your representation would be [GRo-A': "But I'm a carer as well as 
campaigner." JB: "Yes, I appreciate that. But I mean, Glenn is here as a primary 
beneficiary as well as a campaigner."I "There are a couple of points I've got on 
that. The question mark over how you are defining a campaigner, because we've got 
700/nearly 800 members, do you count them as campaigners just because they send to 
us their issues? The Haemophilia Society, they make representations through the 
APPG." -R "My husband who is a haemophiliac read this, and he turned round and 
he said 'to me that is insulting and discrimination to you, but also reading that, every 
single haemophiliac and their partner who have been infected with H C, at one time 
and other have been a campaigner." JB: "What we mean by that GRO_A; is that there 
are people who are very actively associated with those groups and who would want to 
come and represent those groups in the way.... le-1 "If you are going to make this 
definition tighter, are you basically talking about the board members of CBC, TB, and 
Manor House?" LC: "was it 'acting with that hat on'?" JB: "Yes, exactly." LC: "So 
you are coming as a representative of that group?" GRo-A "I have never done that, I 
have only ever come here to be a representative as a carer." LC "It sounds like you 
could be here as a carer and your role here would be as a carer, you might happen to 
be a part of a campaign group and that's fine, or you might be here as a representative 
of a campaign group....." AL: "We just need to tighten the definition, that would be 
helpful". [6R ; "The other thing was, on the primary beneficiaries you've got at least 
one with haemophilia, at least 50/50, I think there is the potential there for von 
willebrand and haemophilia representation and you then get male and female." LC "It 
could be from the bleeding disorder community, which is more representative." AL: 
"Well this is just a suggestion at the moment to take back." JB: "That's a fair point 
because that would then would do the male/female balance." 

LoRo.A "Also, I have a question, it might sound silly.What is the role of the Partnership 
Group?" JB: "I think what we'd need to do is ..."LGRoAJ "No, what is the role NOW of 
the Partnership Group, and what has the role been, because I am very confused 
because, I will tell you for why; I have been a member or the Partnership Group since 
it started, I have never once had a telephone call, an email, any letter, anything to say; 
this is what we're thinking of, what's the feedback from yourself, from the carer's 
position (I don't know about any of the others) we have never had a feedback, we 
have never had a phone call, we've never had a letter, we have never been consulted, 
you've gone off, you've done everything and then you've come back and said `there 
you are, that's what we're going to do'; so why have the Partnership Group?" GW: "I 
have to agree withrthat? I mean this is actually 'a case in point' regarding the changing 
of the PG Group."[ ^; "It's not even about that Glenn, I mean when you come to this 
paper, we've decided; the board's decided; this one's decided; that one's decided. 
Everybody's been included at the Caxton, not once have any member (as far as I'm 
aware) of the other side of the Partnership Group been consulted. How can you call 
that a Partnership when the Caxton board are making all the decisions, there is no 
consultation, there is no information, there's nothing given to the other side." JB: "I 
think that's a little unfair actually, because we talked about the Regular payment 
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system last time, we've got your input, we've now talked through this time what 
we're proposing to do on that, and we've talked through the stuff on the 
communications and about the regional meetings."[GRG-Ai "There is no communication 
between this side of the table and that side, in between meetin  IL_was._.l.st 
November I think that the last meeting was. Have you spoken to[_- _ GRO A ? 
Glenn? Myself? Ro [G I The Haemophilia Society? About any of your thoughts on this Y _.. P Y  
or anybody from the Caxton? Have you spoken to any of us? No, nobody has. I had 
to phone (I don't know about the others), but I had to phone in April to find out what 
was happening about the May meeting which is now obviously August, nobody 
phoned me back, I had to then phone again and phone again, and phone again. I even 
had to phone up and ask when the minutes of the meeting were being sent out." AL: 
"I believe that's my fault4GRO_Aand one of the things I've been talking to Charles 
about, is about improving the communication, or setting up the communication 
between..."' -!Because there isn't any." AL: "That's not exactly right, but I fully 
accept the responsibility for absence of adequate communication with the Partnership 
Group and have been discussing with Charles how we do improve that and to make it 
more meaningful. We have brought the Partnership Group paper (which you have 
seen at the same time as me) to this meeting to ensure that we do get your views back 
and we certainly talked about the regular payment system with you before it went, 
which was important." i ORO.A "You're missing the point Ann, its not about the regular 
payment system, it's the contact in between." AL: "I understand that". jGRan "There's 
nothing." AL: "I understand that and I apologise for that, and I will rectify it."[GRG-A; 
`Because it's 'them and us". AL: "Well that's not how it's supposed to be". EoRo.Aj 
"That's basically what it is' them and us'." AL: "I don't think so." GW: "I have to 
agree, and then we have an ongoing trawl and fight to get things changed. The fact 
that the word `beneficiary' was changed to `client', and then we had an ongoing fight 
for months and months to get it changed back to 'beneficiary' again. You know, if 
you'd have spoken with us beforehand and got our views and opinion, then we would 
have never gone down that road, and this is just another case in point. At the first PG 
meeting, we discussed the make up of the Partnership Group. I wanted the same sort 
of input that the MFI' people had; with the MFT all of the beneficiaries can attend 
their meetings and rightly so..'"GRo,n`Not any more." GW: "because each individual's 
want to give their input. At least have the opportunity. I know a lot of them won't 
want to, but we should at least have the opportunity of attending and speaking on their 
own behalf because a lot of people don't want campaign groups speaking on their 
behalf." AL: "That's true." GW: "So, it was arranged that we were going to have 2 
meetings a year with the campaign group members, and we was going to have one 
overall meeting every year that everybody could attend, and then we read things like 
'now the board has decided' and you think well, where did that come from? We 
haven't been consulted at all."~GRGAi "As far as we're concerned it was agreed." GW: 
"I thinkLGROA 's question's right, what is the role of this Partnership Group?" AL: 
"The beneficiaries are saying that's not what they wanted." [ -J "Yes, but this was 
agreed before you even sent the questionnaire out." AL: "You were talking on behalf 
of the campaign groups, now we were testing it with the beneficiaries and that's only 
right and proper that we do that." cRan "I understand that, but at the last Partnership 
Group meeting we assumed (rightly or wrongly) that we had agreed that the next 
meeting was going to be in May." AL: "Yes, I understand that."!GRG, A "And we had 
agreed that there was going to be, later on in the year or, no in May actually, the same 
time, because of the daylight and it was of the weather that you were going to hold 
one big meeting for all beneficiaries. We assumed that had been agreed, and then all 
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of a sudden, there is no Partnership Group meeting, there's no big meeting, it was 
cancelled, nobody bothered to tell us." AL: "I apologise for that."[ Rw► `I think that's 
were these action points come in, the things that we've agreed and the things that have 
got to be addressed." AL: "I agree." JB: "I think it's also about being clearer about 
the other bits of the jigsaw that we have to take in terms of, even the regional 
meetings, I mean we, there's obviously a very low uptake on that from this survey, 
and sometimes it might be agreed that, that is what might happen, but actually if there 
is no interest in doing it, then it can't go ahead." IoRan"Obviously, then consult with 
the Partnership Group." JB: "That's kind of what we are doing today, we've got the 
results of the survey and you need to understand we are sharing the results. of that 
survey with you before we've even shared them with the board." [?R0] "I do 
understand that." `R ! "I've got to say, it's more than the Macfarlane Trust ever did 
with their communication survey." 0R0-Ar'8ut there was one question you actually left 
out of the communication survey. What do you think of the work that the Caxton 
Foundation do?" JB: "That's not what it was about." AL: "That's part of the 
feedback loop, that's the next phase." LC: "Is there a `terms of reference' for this 
group?" AL: "Yes". LC: "So that might be useful to share" AL: "Reshare" LC: 
"Reshare, yeah, that might be a useful thing and then maybe the next meeting is a 
discussion about it, when you've got new people appointed." AL: "If we get our 
minutes out in a week with the action points and we will follow them up on a monthly 
basis.'tGRo-a!"Just one important point to make. Although we're classified as campaign 
groups, we actually do try to represent core bodies within that, so you haven't got 
your 'out and out' campaigners, a lot of people come to us very privately and they 
don't want their names out." AL: "Of course, we understand that, ok, that's very 
helpful, thank you, I shall feed that back to board." 

GW: "The one thing I wouldn't want to see is this overall meeting going adrift, I think 
I would want to see one overall meeting (called an AGM, whatever you like) but one 
meeting per year where everybody can attend. I have spoken with the other 
Partnership Group members (apart from. ' who arrived late) and we seem to be in 
agreement about that, what do you think just one meeting a year?' crio-n; "The 
thing is, you could throw it open, but it doesn't sound like you are going to get a 
massive uptake." JB: "And that's the issue, and we would spend a lot of money doing 
that kind of event for very little uptake, I think that's the concern." GW: "I think 
that's what it comes down is the money more than anything, its not about what's best 
for the beneficiaries, it's about what it's going to cost." AL: "Of course it's what's 
best for the beneficiaries, it's what they think and want." JB: "To run a meeting where 
there were virtually no people there in a big venue with lots of advisors on different 
things, I think would be probably a bit uncomfortable for everyone to be honest, so 
we need to took at whether there would be that uptake.'"oRo.A"`Where we are looking at 
the number of primary beneficiaries, widows and so on, none campaigners, are we 
talking potentially the same people year in year out, or are you talking about maybe 
throwing it open and making reselecting itself on an annual basis?" AL: "Not annual 
because that would be unfair." LC "Lots of Boards are 3 yearly, so 3 yearly would 
make sense." AL: "It would be unfair a year." LGRo-a "Because that would give a 
chance for that kind of circulation." LC: "New people to come forward if they 
wanted to." AL: "And we will refer the meeting back to the board." J "Are you 
going to share this survey with us as well please?" AL: "Yes, we're giving it another 
couple of weeks Dave to make sure that we capture as many people as possible. We 
can send out with the minutes." VP: "Yes, we will be letting the beneficiaries know 
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what the outcome is." oRo. "Are you sure the 16% are not government fudged 
figures?" AL: "No, they are not. Any other business?" 

A.O.B 

GW: "This is in terms of when people (and it effects quite a few people) when they 
apply for grants and they have been told that they've got to jump through all these 
hoops including census forms, seeing Neil Bateman, Jayne Bellis of Pennysmart, a lot 
of people for different reasons don't want to do all that, so I feel there is a danger of 
those people falling through the cracks, they're not going to get any help in the future 
because they are not prepared to jump through your hoops. So, what are those people 
going to do?" JB: "To be fair, I can think of very, very, very tiny numbers of people, 
in fact maybe just one, who don't want to get that support when it's offered to them." 

[GRO,AI"Can I ask if somebody accepts the help that's offered — the financial advice and 
everything else, and goes away and then 6 months later find themselves in the same 
problem, what happens then? Do they rego back to the debt advisor? Are they 
refused help? Are they refused grants?" JB: "We would normally refer them back to 
the debt advsisor." GRa► "And what if they refuse to go back to the debt advisor?" JB: 
"Again, it hasn't happened."4o o "But if they did?" JB: "We'd have to deal with it 
then." 1 em j "What would the action be, would they be refused again?" JB: "There 
would have to he a discussion at that point, it hasn't happened yet." GW: "People 
have been referred (and I know this for a fact), referred to Neil Bateman and 
Pennysmart multiple times, so they will maybe see them, they'll get the help they 
need from Caxton for a while, and then because they claim from Caxton, well you've 
got a problem with your income, so you'd better go and see Neil Bateman again. 
They're put on a hamster wheel basically, you're going round and round on this 
hamster wheel, and I know of one individual who has been on it four times and they 
are pressurised because they know full well that if they refuse to do these things, 
which Caxton are forcing them to do basically, because if they don't do them then 
they're simply going to have any grants stopped, they're left with nothing. So they 
feel manipulated, they feel pressurised into doing something they don't want to do." 

GRoa'"I agree, we do hear about cases like that and people whose circumstances really 
do not change in-between these referrals, and its like nothing has changed, what do 
you expect by having to go through the same process again and again." LC: `What's 
certainly is something we've heard occasionally, people feel like their situation hasn't 
changed, they've been offered to see someone and there may have been a slight 
change in how they deal with whatever debt they've got, but actually the overriding 
thing that their outgoings are more than their incomings haven't changed." O.* "For 
some people, the balance between the income and outgoings is just never going to get 
resolved no matter how many times you refer them because their situation is just that 
dire." LC: "So there is something about recognising for those people where it isn't 
changing, what happens to them? If you can be clear about why things happen?" 
GW: "Because when they see Jayne Bellis and Pennysmart they are now given a form 
to say 'can that information be shared with the Caxton Foundation'. We had a real 
fight at the beginning with the Caxton Foundation being set up because we found out 
that information (and this is quite serious) was being passed back from Neil Bateman 
and from Pennysmart, back to Caxton without the knowledge of the individual, so 
there are people out there who've had information passed back from Neil Bateman, 
certainly Neil Bateman, I think Pennysmart as well, back to the Caxton Foundation 
without their knowledge and that is outrageous. Now, they're asked to sign a form 
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but it's got a bit of a leading question on the end of the form because it says 'can we 
share your information, if not it may affect the help we can give you in the future'. So 
if they want to remain private, which is perfectly understandable and reasonable, then 
again they are potentially not getting the help. The other question I have; is, if 
somebody thinks, right, I don't trust Caxton to transfer information (because I don't, I 
think possibly information does get fedback from these people) and they want to seek 
independent advice from say, Citizens Advice Bureau, or a debt advisor, or a local 
community benefits team, which I know there are several around the country, if they 
want to seek independent advice without going through Neil Bateman and 
Pennysmart, are they able to do it? And if they do, obviously they won't be providing 
the information back to Caxton, there would be no connection with Caxton, will they 
be penalised for doing it? JB: "Well a) of course they can do it because everyone is 
free to take advice from wherever they want it, I think if someone had gone down that 
route and maybe gone to a CAB advisor about something, if they then came to us 
asking for support with something. and I think there probably have been a few 
examples I can think of, people have fed back to us what the advice has been, so if for 
example sometimes as you know, if people are in a lot of debt, they get onto some pay 
plans and things like that, and people make us aware of how they've decided to deal 
with that situation and therefore what it means and what support they're looking to us 
from." GW: "You maybe don't realise, but you are actually creating a trap for people 
because however they do it, they could do it through the people that Caxton have or 
whether they do it independently and they don't share the information with Caxton, 
which is their perfect right, and you see that, that person is in the same situation 
(pretty desperate situation possibly) that they was in before they got the advice, then 
where do you go from there? You're trapped." LC: "Is there something where people 
could get a letter from wherever they've gone independently to say 'these people have 
taken advice, they are following the advice' and that's all you would need to know?" 
JB: "Yeah but what I'm say is, that's the kind of thing that we do get." LC: "So that 
happens and that would be ok? Maybe that's another of those things people are not 
understanding, that that would be enough, you wouldn't need the details of or on this 
payment plan, so again that information I think of, that would be enough to say 'they 
are following the advice they've been given independently' would be enough for you 
to say, 'ok, we can make an assessment on just that piece of information." CL: 
"There are a number of cases we've seen where people have, you know, had help and 
advice in consolidating their debts and we haven't, you know, that's fine, we don't 
ask them to demonstrate any further that's what they've done." LC: "So maybe that's 
a concern that people have that actually may not be founded on reality, but actually 
that concern is there." GW: "It comes down to detail of the information that's on the 
wcbsite again. I know people that have certainly fallen into that trap, I certainly have 
and I class myself as someone who has a reasonable understanding of this 
organisation, so if I have, then 'you can bet your life' there's going to be a lot of 
people out there who are having that problem." LC: "So if we are working on the 
frequently asked questions.." AL: "Yes." LC: "These are the things you think need 
to be included in that and we can share as much as possible." AL: "Thank you, that 
would be helpful." 

GW: "One last thing, that is 2 hours really for this meeting, I've got a list of 
questions, and was wondering whether future meetings could go on for longer, say a 
full afternoon or the full morning, because a couple of hours really to discuss the 
number and the depth of the things we want to discuss, isn't really enough." AL: 
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"Ok, fine." JB: "You just have to bear in mind that if tlXete.,are lots of kind of detailed 
points, that we might not have the information ready." 

`RO•a "Just one more point, you 
may not have the answer now, but you can always email me with it, could I clarify 
exactly what the process is you go through at the moment for the medication related 
ongoing payment.." AL: "I will, well we'll email everybody." "so I can be clear 
whether it's the same for your first1 jour second, third, whether there are any terms 
and conditions whatever." JB: GRO-Ai will you must drop me an email with the 
questions you've got and then I can reply to you." "It's just a general question; 
your basic policy what you go through, whether there is information required back, or 
whatever." AL: "Yeah, ok." !ono- "Can I just ask, there was one thing, you were 
working on a data base on performance indicators." AL: "Yes, that's right." !GRo-A!"Is 

that ongoing? Is that being used now, or is that..?" JB: "Yes, that's just been 
effectively installed; we're just doing the final bits of data handling." VP: "Yeah, 
we're keenly _going to make sure we can before we put it into the data base so it's 
imminent." !GRo.A'' So it's it imminent? Ok, we wait with interest to see how it works." 
AL: "Fine. Thank you very much and have a safe journey." 

rr

9 

WITN2050101_0072 


